



Annual Accounts 2005

Contents

Directors' report	3
Consolidated annual accounts 2005	
Group income statement	7
Group balance sheet	8
Group cash flow statement	9
Statement of changes in shareholders' equity	10
Accounting principles for consolidated accounts	11
Notes to the consolidated financial statements	16
Huhtamaki 2001–2005	38
Per share data	39
Definitions for key indicators	40
List of subsidiaries	41
Parent company annual accounts 2005	
Parent company income statement	44
Parent company balance sheet	45
Parent company cash flow statement	47
Parent company accounting principles	47
Notes to the parent company financial statements	49
Proposal of the Board of Directors	53
Auditors' report	53

Directors' report

Overview

In 2005, Huhtamaki's underlying business result improved in line with expectations, despite volatility in raw material prices and the focus on restructuring. After a slower start, positive business momentum continued throughout the year, mainly driven by strong recovery in North America.

During 2005 Huhtamaki began the implementation of a restructuring program that targets at optimizing the group's global manufacturing footprint in order to achieve a major improvement in cost efficiency and to build a foundation for future growth. The restructuring program was announced in two phases, at the end of 2004 and mid-year 2005. The first phase was completed on schedule by year-end and the second phase is progressing according to plan. Parallel to the restructuring work, which primarily concerns rigid packaging operations, further capacity expansion was initiated in strategic growth markets.

The underlying result excludes the restructuring and goodwill impairment charges.

During the year the company's organization was strengthened and change momentum accelerated through a number of key appointments.

Business review by region

For the full year, net sales increased by 7% to EUR 2,244 million, with growth accelerating towards the end of the year. Sales were positively impacted by price/mix changes (+4%), volume growth (+2%) and currency translations (+1%). Sales growth was robust in the Americas (+16%) and Asia-Oceania-Africa (+10%), while growth in Europe remained moderate (+2%).

The geographical distribution of sales was the following: Europe 52% (55% in 2004), Americas 32% (29%) and Asia-Oceania-Africa 16% (16%).

In 2005, raw material prices continued to increase strongly compared to the average level in 2004. Furthermore, volatility was present throughout the year, while in 2004 there was a steady increase, with prices accelerating towards year-end

Europe

In Europe, net sales for the full year were up by 2% to EUR 1,172 million. Sales were positively impacted by price/mix changes (+2%) and currency translations (+1%), partly offset by the negative impact from decline in volume (-2%). While price/mix changes and currency translations developed in a more stable manner during the year, overall volume growth was weak in the first quarter, recovering slightly in the remaining quarters. While Eastern Europe as a whole was dynamic with sales growth especially in Russia, development in Western Europe was more varied. The Foodservice business

saw accelerated growth, especially during the high season in the middle of the year, but the Consumer Goods business remained subdued over the year. Performance in the Films business was strong all year, while the Flexibles business started and finished strongly. The Molded Fiber business maintained its solid footing throughout the year.

The region's underlying full year EBIT improved by 5% to EUR 72 million, corresponding to an EBIT margin of 6.1% (5.9%). This reflects cost savings materializing from the ongoing restructuring, while polymer-based raw material prices remained extremely volatile throughout the year exerting pressure on margins. The reported EBIT, EUR 8 million (EUR 40 million), includes a restructuring charge of EUR 64 million (EUR 28 million). On a rolling 12-month basis, the region's underlying RONA was 9.2% (8.6%).

Americas

In the Americas, net sales for the full year were up by 16% to EUR 707 million. Sales were positively impacted by price/mix changes (+9%), volume growth (+6%) and currency translations (+1%). After a strong first half of the year, volume growth stabilized closer to market growth in the second half. The development in price/mix was solid throughout the year, being especially strong in the second and third quarters. After a negative first half of the year, the impact from currency translations turned positive in the third quarter and continued to boost reported sales in the final quarter. In North America, performance within the Retail division and the Consumer Goods business was strong throughout the year. Also, the Foodservice business posted solid growth, which accelerated towards year-end. Mexico improved after a slow start to the year. In South America, business in Brazil remained on a solid footing

The region's underlying full year EBIT of EUR 46 million showed a clear improvement of 55%, corresponding to an EBIT margin of 6.5% (4.9%). This reflects positive sales development and successful price management, partly offset by operational inefficiencies and higher distribution costs. The reported EBIT of EUR 15 million includes a goodwill impairment charge of EUR 31 million. The previous year's EBIT, EUR 16 million, included a restructuring charge of EUR 14 million. On a rolling 12-month basis, underlying RONA was 8.0% (5.1%).

Asia-Oceania-Africa

In Asia-Oceania-Africa, net sales for the full year were up by 10% to EUR 365 million. Sales were positively impacted by volume growth (+6%), currency translations (+3%) and price/mix changes (+1%). After a slower start to the year, volume growth accelerated towards year-end. The reverse took place with price/mix development. After a negative first quar-

ter, positive impact from currency translations accelerated towards year-end. Overall, the whole region put in a solid performance during the year lead by the Flexibles business in Southeast Asia.

The region's underlying full year EBIT improved by 3% to EUR 24 million, corresponding to an EBIT margin of 6.7% (7.1%). The overall progress in profitability posted by the Rigid business in Oceania was largely offset by operational inefficiencies in the rest of the business in Oceania, as well as one-off costs relating to the downsizing of the Flexibles business in South Africa recorded in the fourth quarter. The reported full year EBIT of EUR 17 million includes a restructuring charge of EUR 6 million and a goodwill impairment charge of EUR 1 million. The previous year's reported EBIT of EUR 20 million included a restructuring charge of EUR 4 million. On a rolling 12-month basis, underlying RONA was 8.2% (8.4%).

The company is also taking steps to increase production capacity in selected, strategic growth markets. During the third quarter a decision was reached to build a new flexible packaging facility in Northern India, and to add a new production line to the existing flexible packaging site in Vietnam. Both projects are progressing according to plan and are expected to be operational around mid 2006. Furthermore, a new rigid packaging facility will be constructed in Southern China, which is expected to be ready by the end of 2007.

Financial review

For the full year, the underlying EBIT before corporate items increased by 17% to EUR 142 million, corresponding to an EBIT margin of 6.3% (5.8%). The improvement was mainly driven by the sustained turnaround in the Americas, and further supported by a lower cost structure achieved in Europe.

At EUR 18 million, corporate net for the year was lower than the EUR 25 million a year ago. Hence, the underlying group EBIT amounted to EUR 160 million (+9%), corresponding to an EBIT margin of 7.1% (7.0%). The reported EBIT of EUR 58 million includes a restructuring charge of EUR 70 million and a goodwill impairment charge of EUR 33 million, and compares with the previous year's EUR 101 million, which included a restructuring charge of EUR 46 million.

Net financial items for the year were EUR 37 million, unchanged from the previous year. The reported profit for the period was EUR 9 million (EUR 52 million). The reported EPS was 7 cents (52 cents).

The average number of outstanding shares used in the EPS calculation was 98,501,625 (96,734,981), both figures excluding the 5,061,089 shares owned by the company.

On a rolling 12-month basis, the return on investment (ROI) was 4.0% (6.7%), reflecting the restructuring costs and goodwill impairment charge recorded. Correspondingly, return on equity (ROE) was 1.3% (6.7%).

Balance sheet and cash flow

At the end of December 2005, net debt was EUR 712 million increasing by 2% from a year ago. This corresponds with a gearing ratio of 0.87 (0.88).

In December, a EUR 475 million revolving credit facility was signed, used to refinance the company's existing facility from November 2003 as well as for general corporate purposes. The maturity of the new facility is five years with one-year extension options after years one and two.

For the full year, free cash flow decreased to EUR 66 million (EUR 77 million) driven by an increase of capital expenditure as well as cash outflow relating to restructuring.

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure amounted to EUR 113 million (EUR 94 million), corresponding to an investment rate of 113% (95%) of depreciation. Although the level of comparison was on the low side to begin with, the increase in capital expenditure in 2005 is explained by projects relating to restructuring and capacity expansion, as well as to the continued development of a common European enterprise resource planning (ERP) platform.

Direct expenditure on research and development amounted to EUR 19 million (EUR 18 million).

Environmental review

Huhtamaki adheres to its Group Environmental Policy in order to ensure globally consistent operating principles. This is complemented by more detailed corporate policies and guidelines such as the code of conduct for suppliers. In addition, Huhtamaki is a signatory to the ICC Business Charter for Sustainable Development. Environmental management systems and tools have been created to support implementation and monitor progress. All manufacturing sites regularly inform on their performance. From a total of 68 reporting manufacturing sites, 33 (49%) follow an externally certified environmental management system such as ISO 14001, the Eco-Management and Audit Scheme (EMAS) or an internally audited program such as the US Environmental Care Program. The significant direct environmental aspects of operations are energy use, emissions into the air as well as waste

Restructuring program

Through 2005, Huhtamaki implemented a restructuring program that targets at optimizing the group's global manufacturing footprint in order to achieve a major improvement in cost efficiency and to build a foundation for future growth. In total, it will result in estimated annualized savings of EUR 40 million, reaching full run-rate by the end of 2007. Close to 1,000 employees will be directly affected in units subject to closure or downsizing, but the net impact will be less due to capacity expansion in other locations.

The restructuring program was announced in two phases, at the end of 2004 and mid-year 2005. The total charges related to the program are EUR 126 million, of which EUR 46 million were recorded in 2004, EUR 70 million in 2005, with the majority of the remaining EUR 10 million to be recorded in 2006. Additionally, the reported result was impacted by a goodwill write-down of EUR 33 million in the second quarter of 2005 that mostly related to the operations in North America

The first phase of the restructuring targeted a reduction of 300 employees by the end of 2005, focusing on European rigid packaging operations with the closure of the site in Leeds (UK), and headcount reductions at Göttingen (Germany), Auneau (France) and several other units. At the end of December 2005, all activities had been completed in accordance with the plan.

The key activities related to the second phase of the restructuring include the following:

- Closure of the rigid packaging site in Skelmersdale (UK), completed in the fourth quarter of 2005 with an employee reduction of approximately 100.
- Closure of the rigid packaging site in Bayswater (Australia), completed in the fourth quarter of 2005 with the transfer of operations to Mulgrave, resulting in an employee reduction of close to 30.
- Closure of the rigid packaging site in Göttingen (Germany), to be completed by mid-2006, with reloation to Siemianowice (Poland) and Nules (Spain). Approximately 400 employees are affected in Göttingen.
- Downsizing of the rigid packaging site in Portadown (UK), with the remaining operations becoming a satellite of the unit in Gosport (UK). The estimated reduction is close to 90 employees, with completion estimated by the end of the first quarter of 2006.
- Closure of the rigid packaging site in Hong Kong (China) by the end of 2007 following relocation to a new, larger facility to be constructed in Southern China. Over 100 employees are affected in Hong Kong.

Corporate structure

No material acquisitions or divestments were conducted.

Personnel

At year-end, Huhtamaki had 14,935 (15,531) employees. The number of European employees was 7,022 (7,352); the corresponding figure for the Americas was 3,867 (3,949) and for Asia-Oceania-Africa 4,046 (4,230). The average number of employees was 15,294 (15,652).

The parent company employed 762 (720) people at yearend, comprising the Espoo head office 80 (73) and the Finnish packaging operations 682 (647). The annual average was 783 (768).

Changes in management

Mr. Sakari Ahdekivi was appointed CFO and Executive Committee member effective from March 15, 2005. Mr. Clay Dunn started as EVP Americas and Executive Committee member on June 1, 2005. Mr. Kalle Tanhuanpää, an Executive Committee member, was appointed EVP, Global Customer Strategy, starting August 1, 2005. He repatriated to Espoo, Finland from his previous assignment as EVP Americas. In November, Mr. Tony Combe, EVP Australia-Oceania-Africa and Executive Committee member announced his resignation in order to pursue a career outside of the company. Mr. Henk Koekoek, an Executive Committee member, replaced Mr. Tony Combe and relocated to Sydney, Australia from his previous position as EVP Europe Flexibles, Films and Molded Fiber (FFF) with effect from January 9, 2006. Mr. Walter Günter, Division President Films, will assume responsibility for Europe FFF until further notice.

Decisions taken by the Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Huhtamäki Oyj was held on March 30, 2005 in Helsinki. The meeting approved the company's and consolidated accounts for 2004 and discharged the company's Board of Directors and the CEO of liability. The dividend for 2004 was set at EUR 0.38 per share, unchanged from the previous year's dividend. The AGM granted the Board authorization to decide on the conveyance of the company's own shares within one year's time. The authorization was not exercised during the year.

The AGM decided that the Board of Directors shall consist of seven members (previously eight members). The following persons were re-elected to the Board for a one-year term lasting until the next AGM: Ms. Eija Ailasmaa, Mr. George V. Bayly, Mr. Robertus van Gestel, Mr. Paavo Hohti and Mr. Anthony J.B. Simon. Mr. Mikael Lilius and Mr. Jukka Suominen replaced the previous Board members Mr. Timo Peltola, Mr. Veli Sundbäck, Chairman, and Mr. Jukka Viinanen, who all announced that they were no longer available for re-election. The Board subsequently elected Mr. Lilius as its Chairman and Mr. Hohti as Vice Chairman.

Share capital and shareholders

At year-end, the company's registered share capital was EUR 353,053,864.80 (EUR 351,549,024.80) corresponding to a total number of outstanding shares of 103,839,372 (103,396,772) including 5,061,089 (unchanged) shares owned by the company; net figure of outstanding shares: 98,778,283 (98,335,683). In 2005, a total of 442,600 new shares were issued under the 2000 A, B and C stock option rights.

The ownership structure relating to the largest shareholders was not subject to major changes over the year. At the end of December 2005 there were 20,268 (18,303) regis-

tered shareholders. Foreign ownership accounted for 21.3% (26.7%), of which 17.8% (24.5%) was under nominee registration.

of the total in issue. The company's 2003 A stock option rights were listed on the Helsinki Stock Exchange on May 2, 2005

Share developments

Huhtamaki's share is quoted on the main list of the Helsinki Stock Exchange under the Materials sector (previously Food Industry). Huhtamaki's share price rose by 17% (26% in 2004) during the year with the closing price at year-end being EUR 13.91 (EUR 11.87). Meanwhile, the OMX Helsinki CAP Index (previously HEX Portfolio Index) increased over the year by 27% (11%).

Huhtamaki's market capitalization at year-end was EUR 1,374 million (EUR 1,167 million). The highest price paid for the Huhtamaki share was EUR 14.88 (EUR 12.30) on July 14, 2005 occurring shortly after the second phase of restructuring was announced. The lowest share price paid was EUR 11.37 (EUR 9.40) on April 18, 2005 taking place a few days prior to the publication of the first quarter results. In 2005, the volume weighted average price was EUR 12.84 (EUR 10.71).

The cumulative value of the share turnover was EUR 1,085 million (EUR 759 million) with a trading volume of 84 million (71 million) shares, 86% (73%) of the average number of shares in issue. This equals an average daily turnover of 4.3 million (3.0 million) or correspondingly of 333,665 (280,315) shares. Trading in the Huhtamaki share was particularly strong in September with a volume turnover of 11.1 million shares. The weakest months in trading were in July and in December with a turnover of 3.9 million shares and 5.5 million shares, respectively. For the majority of the year trading activity was relatively even with volumes between 6.2–8.1 million shares per month.

In total, trading volume in the company's 2000 A, B, C and 2003 A option rights was 738,916 (694,950), 45% (77%)

Outlook for 2006

In 2006, the underlying EBIT is expected to show a moderate improvement over 2005, despite decreasing unallocated corporate income in the second half of the year. The improvement will be based on cost savings, as well as profitable growth in selected markets. Volatile polymer-based raw material prices may put pressure on margins. The reported result will include most of the remaining EUR 10 million of charges related to the previously announced restructuring programs.

Capital expenditure will be temporarily elevated to EUR 150 million primarily driven by the announced expansion projects. This combined with restructuring related cash outflows will impact on free cash flow.

Emphasis on performance management and capacity investments for growth will continue. Execution of the change program remains essential, while maintaining positive business momentum.

Annual General Meeting 2006

The Annual General Meeting of Huhtamäki Oyj will be held on Monday March 27, 2006 at 16.00 (Finnish time) at Finlandia Hall, Mannerheimintie 13 e, Helsinki, Finland.

Dividend proposal

The Board proposes a dividend of EUR 0.38 (EUR 0.38) per share

Key exchange rates in Euros

			2005		2004
		Income statement	Balance sheet	Income statement	Balance sheet
Australia	AUD	0.6124	0.6208	0.5912	0.5728
Brazil	BRL	0.3291	0.3644	0.2753	0.2761
UK	GBP	1.4622	1.4592	1.4721	1.4183
India	INR	0.0182	0.0188	0.0178	0.0169
South Africa	ZAR	0.1267	0.1340	0.1258	0.1300
United States	USD	0.8033	0.8477	0.8062	0.7342

Consolidated annual accounts 2005

Group income statement (IFRS)

EUR million	Note	2005	%	2004	%
Net sales	2	2,243.7	100.0	2,092.3	100.0
Cost of goods sold	1	-1,907.7		-1,797.0	
Gross profit		336.0	15.0	295.3	14.1
Other operating income	3	46.8		43.5	
Sales and marketing	1	-99.2		-93.3	
Research and development	1	-18.7		-17.9	
Administration costs	1	-121.2		-112.5	
Other operating expenses	1,4	-86.0		-13.8	
		-278.3		-194.0	
Earnings before interest and taxes	5,6	57.7	2.6	101.3	4.8
Net financial items	7	-36.9		-36.6	
Income from associated companies		0.6		0.8	
Profit before taxes		21.4	1.0	65.5	3.1
Taxes	8	-12.0		-13.1	
Profit for the period		9.4	0.4	52.4	2.5
Attributable to:					
Equity holders of the parent company		6.9		50.4	
Minority interest		2.5		2.0	
Basic earnings per share (EUR) for the shareholders of parent company	9	0.07		0.52	
Diluted earnings per share (EUR) for the shareholders of parent company		0.07		0.52	

Group balance sheet (IFRS)

EUR million	Notes	2005	%	2004	%
Non-current assets					
Goodwill	10	546.0		567.9	
Intangible assets	10	8.0		7.5	
Tangible assets	11	849.2		816.7	
Investments in associated companies	12	1.7		1.6	
Available for sale investments	14	1.8		1.7	
Interest bearing receivables	15	4.3		20.0	
Deferred tax assets	16	16.0		21.8	
Employee benefit assets	17	68.2		55.6	
Other non-current assets	.,	15.7		19.1	
Other Hell Gallon assets		1,510.9	65.5	1,511.9	67.8
Current assets		1,010.7	00.0	1,011.7	07.0
Inventory	18	311.3		289.8	
Interest bearing receivables	15	17.2		15.5	
Income tax receivables	10	29.6		24.2	
Trade and other current receivables	19	400.7		361.5	
	20	37.6		28.6	
Cash and cash equivalents	20	796.4	34.5	719.6	32.2
Total Assets		2,307.3	100.0	2,231.5	100.0
Total Associa		2,307.3	100.0	2,201.0	100.0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES					
EUR million		2005	%	2004	%
Share capital	21	353.0		351.5	
Premium fund		96.8		95.4	
Treasury shares		-46.5		-46.5	
Translation differences		-76.9		-119.7	
Fair value and other reserves	27	-0.2		-2.9	
Retained earnings		475.8		504.0	
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent		802.0	34.8	781.8	35.0
A Minarch, Colonia		10.4	0.0	147	0.7
Minority interest		18.4	0.8	796.5	0.7
Total equity		820.4	35.6	790.5	35.7
Non-current liabilities					
Interest bearing liabilities	22	404.1		370.7	
Deferred tax liabilities	16	81.5		42.2	
Employee benefit liabilities	17	117.8		123.8	
Provisions	23	51.1		84.7	
Other non-current liabilities		4.9		7.6	
		659.4	28.5	629.0	28.2
Current liabilities					
Interest bearing liabilities					
Current portion of long term loans	22	15.1		13.1	
Short term loans	22	351.4		379.5	
Provisions	23	24.2		24.0	
Income tax liabilities		35.4		35.2	
Trade and other current liabilities	24	401.4		354.2	
		827.5	35.9	806.0	36.1
Total liabilities		1,486.9	64.4	1,435.0	64.3
Total Equity and Liabilities		2,307.3	100.0	2,231.5	100.0

Group cash flow statement (IFRS)

EUR million	2005	2004
Profit for the period	9.4	52.4
Adjustments	225.4	184.9
Depreciation and amortisation	132.5	133.9
Gain on equity of minorities	-0.7	-0.8
Gain/loss from disposal of assets	4.3	-1.0
Financial expense/-income	36.9	36.6
Taxes expense/-income	12.0	13.1
Other adjustments, operational	40.4	3.1
Change in inventory	-2.7	-28.4
Change in non-interest bearing receivables	-59.5	-8.8
Change in non-interest bearing payables	52.7	24.3
Dividends received	0.9	0.9
Interest received	3.8	4.6
Interest paid	-43.6	-40.7
Other financial expenses and income	-2.5	-2.2
Taxes paid	-15.4	-20.4
Cash flows from operating activities	168.5	166.6
Capital expenditure	-113.4	-94.0
Proceeds from selling other investments	0.0	0.1
Proceeds from selling fixed assets	10.4	4.0
Change in long-term deposits	15.7	4.5
Change in short-term deposits	-1.2	-9.4
Cash flows from investing	-88.5	-94.7
Proceeds from long-term borrowings	1,045.0	239.4
Repayment of long-term borrowings	-1,021.8	-204.4
Proceeds from short-term borrowings	2,343.1	1,684.8
Repayment of short-term borrowings	-2,405.7	-1,767.9
Dividends paid	-37.4	-36.5
Proceeds from stock option exercises	2.9	17.4
Cash flows from financing	-73.9	-67.3
Change in liquid assets	9.0	3.9
Cash flow based	6.1	4.6
Translation difference	2.9	-0.7
Liquid assets on January 1	28.6	24.7
Liquid assest on December 31	37.6	28.6

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity

			Attributable to equity holders of the parent					Minority	Total
EUR million	Share capital	Share issue premium	Treasury shares	Translation differences	Fair Value and other reserves	Retained earnings	Total equity	interest	
Balance at 31.12.2003	344.2	85.4	-46.5	-110.3	-7.7	490.1	755.2	14.8	770.0
Cashflow Hedges									
Hedge result deferred to equity					-2.3		-2.3		-2.3
Hedge result recognised in income statement					8.5		8.5		8.5
Hedge result to carrying amount of hedged items					0.6		0.6		0.6
Translation differencies				-9.4			-9.4	-0.6	-10.0
Deferred tax in equity					-2.0		-2.0		-2.0
Share-based payments						0.8	0.8		0.8
Other changes						-0.8	-0.8		-0.8
Net income recognised directly in equity				-9.4	4.8	0.0	-4.6	-0.6	-5.2
Net income for the period						50.4	50.4	2.0	52.4
Total recognised income and expense for the period				-9.4	4.8	50.4	45.8	1.4	47.2
Dividend						-36.5	-36.5	-1.5	-38.0
Stock options exercised	7.3	10.0					17.3		17.3
Balance at 31.12.2004	351.5	95.4	-46.5	-119.7	-2.9	504.0	781.8	14.7	796.5
Cashflow Hedges									
Hedge result deferred to equity					-2.0		-2.0		-2.0
Hedge result recognised in income statement					4.6		4.6		4.6
Translation differencies				43.4	1.0		43.4	1.1	44.5
Deferred tax in equity				10.1	0.1		0.1		0.1
Share-based payments					0.1	1.4	1.4		1.4
Other changes						0.3	0.3		0.3
Net income recognised						0.0	0.5		0.0
directly in equity				43.4	2.7	1.7	47.8	1.1	48.9
Net income for the period						6.9	6.9	2.5	9.4
Total recognised income and expense for the period				43.4	2.7	8.6	54.7	3.6	58.3
Dividend						-37.4	-37.4		-37.4
Stock options exercised	1.5	1.4					2.9		2.9
Balance at 31.12.2005	353.0	96.8	-46.5	-76.3	-0.2	475.2	802.0	18.4	820.4

Additional information is presented in note 21 for share capital and in note 27 for fair value and other reserves

DISTRIBUTABLE FUNDS

EUR million	Dec 31/2005	Dec 31/2004
Retained earnings	475.8	504.0
Untaxed reserves in retained earnings	-29.6	-29.6
Treasury shares	-46.5	-46.5
Distributable funds	399.6	427.9

Accounting principles for consolidated accounts

The consolidated financial statements of Huhtamäki Oyj, a Finnish limited liability company domiciled in Espoo have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). IFRSs, referred to in the Finnish Accounting Act and in ordinances issued based on the provisions of this Act, refer to the standards and their interpretations adopted in accordance with the procedure laid down in regulations (EC) No 1606/2002 of the EU.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of euros and have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed in accounting policies below.

In 2003 the group adopted all IFRS standards and the adoption was done according to the IFRS 1 - First-Time Adoption of the IFRS standard using January 1, 2002 as the transition date. The Group has adopted as from January 1, 2005 following International Accounting Standards and interpretations: IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, revised IAS 19 Employee Benefit, IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities and IFRIC 4 Determining whether an agreement contains a lease. As IASB has cancelled the interpretation of IFRIC 3 Emission rights in June 2005, Huhtamaki has valued and booked the emission rights and liability to deliver allowances initially at their fair value. Adopting these standards had no material impact on reported result, but some changes to disclosures. The 2004 employee expense and retained earnings comparative figures have been restated by 0.8 million euros reflecting the adoption of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the parent company Huhtamäki Oyj and all subsidiaries where over 50% of the subsidiary's voting rights are controlled directly or indirectly by the parent company, or the parent company is otherwise in control of the company.

Associated companies, where Huhtamaki holds voting rights of between 20% and 50% and in which Huhtamaki has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies, are included in consolidated profit and loss accounts using the equity method. When Huhtamaki's share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the associate, the carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred obligations in respect of the associates.

Proportional consolidation is applied for companies over whose activities Huhtamaki has joint control, established by contractual agreement. The consolidated financial statements include Huhtamaki's proportionate share (usually 50%) of the entity's assets, liabilities, income and expenses, from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint

control ceases.

Acquired companies are accounted for using the purchase method according to which the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired company are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition and the remaining balance of purchase price less acquired equity is recognized as goodwill. In accordance with the exception included in the IFRS 1 the acquisitions prior to the IFRS transition date have not been restated but the previous values are taken as the deemed cost. Goodwill on the consolidated balance sheet is recognized as an asset in the currency of the acquiring entity until December 31, 2003 and after that goodwill arising from new acquisitions is recognized in the functional currency of foreign operations.

Subsidiaries acquired during the financial year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of their acquisition and divested subsidiaries are included up to their date of sale.

All intercompany transactions, receivables, liabilities and unrealized profits, as well as distribution of profits within the group, are eliminated. Profit for the period is attributable to equity holders of the parent company and minority interest. Minority interest is also disclosed as a separate item within equity.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency, at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. For practical reasons, an approximate exchange rate is often used for transactions taking place during the month. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognized in the income statement.

On consolidation the income statements of foreign entities are translated into euros at the average exchange rate for the accounting period. The balance sheets of foreign entities are translated at the year-end exchange rate.

Differences resulting from the translation of income statement items at the average rate and balance sheet items at the closing rate are recognized as a separate item in equity.

In accordance with the exception included in the IFRS 1 the cumulative translation differences until the transition date have been reclassified to retained earnings. From the transition date onwards exchange differences arising on the translation of the net investment in foreign subsidiaries and associated companies are recorded in translation difference, which is a separate component of equity. A similar treatment is applied to intragroup permanent loans, which in substance are equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, accumulated exchange differences are recognized in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are classified based on IAS 39 to the following groups: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available for sale assets and loans and other receivables.

As financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are classified cash balances and call deposits with banks and other liquid investments, such as cash and cash equivalents.

Publicly traded and unlisted shares are classified as available-for-sale assets. Publicly traded shares are recognized at fair value, which is based on quoted market bid prices at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized directly in equity until the financial asset is sold or otherwise disposed of, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is included in the income statement. If the assets are impaired, the impairment loss is included in the income statement. Unlisted shares are carried at cost, as their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

As loans and other receivables are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active markets. Trade and other receivables are included in this class. Trade and other receivables are initially measured at cost. Impairment is made for doubtful trade receivables or to loan receivables based on individual assessment of potential identified credit risk.

In Group interest bearing borrowings are classified as other liabilities. Interest-bearing borrowings are originated loans and are carried at amortized cost by using the effective interest rate method.

All derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value. The Group applies cash flow hedge accounting for certain interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forwards that meet hedge accounting criteria as defined in IAS 39. The hedged item must be highly probable to occur and must ultimately affect the income statement. The hedges must be highly effective both prospectively and retrospectively. For qualifying cash flow hedges, the portion of any change in fair value that is effective is included in equity, and any remaining ineffective portion is reported in the income statement. The cumulative changes of fair value of the hedging instrument that have been recorded in equity are included in the income statement when the forecasted transaction affects net income. When the hedged transaction is a firm commitment, the cumulative change of fair value of the hedging instrument that has been recorded in equity is included in the initial carrying value of the asset or liability at the time it is recognized.

Changes in fair values of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 39 are recognized immediately in the income statement.

The Group uses foreign exchange forwards and foreign currency loans to hedge net investments in foreign entities. Hedges of net investment in foreign entities must meet the same hedge accounting criteria as cash flow hedges as detailed in IAS 39. For qualifying foreign exchange forwards, the change in the fair value of the forwards that reflect the change in spot exchange rates is deferred in shareholder's equity. The change in the fair value of the forwards that reflects the change in forward interest points is booked in the income statement. When foreign currency loans are used as a hedge, all foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the transaction are recognized in equity. If the hedged entity is disposed of, the cumulative changes in fair value of the hedging instrument that have been recorded in equity are included in the income statement at the time of disposal.

Fair values of foreign exchange forwards are calculated using market rates on the balance sheet date. Fair values of foreign exchange options are calculated with the Garman-Kohlhagen model. Fair values of interest rate swaps, futures and forwards are based on net present values of estimated future cash flows. Cash, short-term loans and overdrafts have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts because of their short-term nature.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated amortization until end of 2003 and accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is no longer amortized but is tested annually for impairment. In respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment in the associates.

Other intangible assets include patents, copyrights, land use rights, emission rights and software licenses. These are stated at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over expected useful lives, which may vary from 3 to 20 years. Land use rights are depreciated over the agreement period.

Bought emission rights will be initially valued at cost. Received emission rights are reported in balance sheet initially at their fair value. After that emission rights are valued at cost. Emission rights, which will be sold on market, are not depreciated, as carrying value of those emission rights are considered to account for initial value. Emission rights will be derecognised at transaction date, when actual emissions are defined.

Periods of amortization used:

Intangible rights up to 20 (years) Software 3-5 (years)

Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Research and development

Research and development costs are charged to the income statement in the year in which they are incurred.

Expenditure on development activities related to new products and processes has not been capitalized because the assured availability of future economic benefits is evident only once the products are in the market place. Currently the Group balance sheet carries no capitalized development expenditure.

Tangible assets

Tangible assets comprised mainly of land, buildings, machinery, tooling and equipment are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of material, direct labor and an appropriated proportion of production overheads. When an asset includes major components that have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component in a tangible asset that is accounted for separately, including major inspection and overhaul costs, is capitalized. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. All other expenditure such as ordinary maintenance and repairs is recognized in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are:

Buildings and other structures 20 – 40 (years) Machinery and equipment 5 – 15 (years) Other tangible assets 3 – 12 (years)

Tangible assets which are classified as for sale, are valued at lower of its carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The depreciation of these assets will be ceased when assets are classified as held for sale.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of tangible fixed assets are included in Earnings before interest and taxes.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of assets or cash-generating unit exceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement.

Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying value of goodwill allocated to groups of cash-generating units and

then to reduce the carrying amount of other assets in the group of units on pro rata bases.

For intangible and tangible assets the recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value based on the average cost of capital rate (pre-tax) of the cash generating unit where the assets are located, adjusted for risks specific to the assets

In respect of tangible assets and other intangible assets excluding goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is only reversed to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is never reversed.

The recoverable amount for financial investments such as available-for-sale investments or receivables is calculated as the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted. An impairment loss is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

Leases

In accordance with the criteria for finance leases in IAS 17 Leases, lease contracts in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. In finance leases the assets and accumulated depreciation are included in fixed assets and the associated obligations are included in interest bearing liabilities. When a group company is the lessor, the discounted future lease payments are booked as interest bearing receivables and the property that has been leased out is removed from tangible assets. Lease payments under finance leases are divided into interest expense or interest income and installment payment of liability or receivable. Rental payments and rental income under operating leases are charged to the income statement

Assets financed with leasing contracts that are defined as finance leases under IAS 17 have been capitalized and are stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and are depreciated at the rates disclosed above for tangible fixed assets, however not exceeding the rental period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

The cost is determined on the first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Cost for produced finished goods and work in process represents the purchase price of materials, direct labor, other direct costs and related production overheads excluding selling and financial costs.

A provision for inventory obsolescence is maintained.

Employee benefits

The Group companies have various pension plans in accordance with local conditions and practices throughout the world. The plans are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans.

The contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement in the year to which they relate

The present value of the obligation of defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit method and the plan assets are measured at fair value at the measurement date.

In calculating the Group's obligation with respect to a plan, the extent to which the cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain or loss exceeds the greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets by more than 10% is identified. That excess portion is recognized in the income statement over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan. Otherwise, the actuarial gain or loss is not recognized. In accordance with the exception included in the IFRS1, all unrecognized actuarial gains and losses have been recognized at the date of transition.

Share-based payment transactions

The granted stock option programme allows certain members of management of Huhtamäki Oyj and its subsidiaries to acquire shares of Huhtamäki Oyj. The fair value of options granted is recognized as an employee expense with corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and spread over the vesting period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The fair value of options granted is measured using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account the market terms and conditions of agreement when pricing the options. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that will be vested.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made

Provisions arise from restructuring plans, onerous contracts and from environmental litigation or tax risks. Obligations arising from restructuring plans are recognized when the detailed and formal plans have been established and when there is a valid expectation that such plan will be carried out (plan has been announced). Provision form emissions are recognized according to actual emissions.

Taxes

The Group income statement includes current taxes of Group companies based on taxable profit for the financial period according to local tax regulations as well as adjustments to prior year taxes and changes in deferred taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the liability method for all temporary differences arising from the difference between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for IFRS reporting purposes. In the determination of deferred income tax the enacted tax rate is used.

Principal temporary differences arise from tangible fixed assets, untaxed reserves, tax losses carried forward, financial instruments and defined benefit pension plans. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Temporary differences are not provided for goodwill, which is not deductible for tax purposes.

Equity, dividends and own shares

Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are not recorded in the financial statements until the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting have approved them.

When Huhtamäki Oyj's own shares are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognized as a deduction in equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized after the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred to the buyer. Normally revenue recognition takes place at the date of delivery. Net sales is calculated after deduction of sales discounts and indirect sales taxes.

Grants

Government or other grants are recognized in the income statement on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Investment grants are recognized as revenue on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset. Government grants relating to emissions are accrued based on actual emissions.

Other operating income and expense

Other operating income includes gains from disposal of assets and regular income, such as royalty and rental income, which have not been derived from primary activities.

Other operating expenses include losses from disposal of assets and other costs not directly related to production or sale of products such as amortization of software.

Use of estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Such estimates mainly affect restructuring plans, provisions for inventory obsolescence, environmental litigation and tax risks, carrying amounts of assets, the measurement of pension liabilities and the probability of deferred tax assets being recovered against future taxable profits.

New IAS/IFRS standards and interpretations

The IASB has published during 2005 IFRS 7 Financial Instruments disclosures -standard and following amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement -standard: Fair value option, Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup transactions and Financial guarantee contracts and credit insurance. Additionally Net investment in a Foreign Operation amendment to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates has been published. The group has analyzed the effects that these revised standards may cause when adopted and expects that the impact will not be significant. The revised standards will be adopted on January 1, 2006.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. RESTRUCTURING COSTS

In mid-year 2005 the Board of Directors approved the second phase of restructuring program for EUR 80 million, of which EUR 69.8 million incurred during 2005. The first phase was announced in December 2004 amounting EUR 46 million. These amounts represent the costs of site rightsizing and closures together with the writing down of manufacturing assets for technical or economic reasons. The first phase

of restructuring have been completed by the end of 2005 in accordance with plan. The second phase will continue during 2006 and will be completed by the end of 2007. The costs of the restructuring program have been included within reported Earnings before interest and taxes under the appropriate expense classifications within the consolidated income statement and are as follows:

EUR million	2005	2004
Cost of goods sold	30.9	43.4
Sales and marketing	1.1	0.6
Research and development	0.2	0.6
Administration costs	1.5	1.0
Other operating expense	36.1	0.4
Total	69.8	46.0

The major part of the remaining EUR 10 million of total EUR 126 million restructuring costs will be recorded in 2006.

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In segment reporting geographical segment is defined as the primary segment and business segment as secondary. Segment reporting reflects the Group's management and internal reporting structure.

Geographical segments:

Europe

Americas

Asia, Oceania, Africa

Segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers whereas segment assets/liabilities are based on geographical location of assets. Intercompany sales between regions is insignificant.

Business segments:

Consumer Goods: Primarily serves the food processing industry and packers of food products but also other consumer products packers including pet food, personal care and detergents. Foodservice: Serves all leading international quick service and beverage companies, coffee and casual dining restaurant chains, institutional caterers and vending operators. Segment also includes tableware sales for the retail channels.

Business segments are managed through the three geographical regions presented in primary segments.

Segment income statement is presented down to EBIT (earnings before interest and taxes).

Segment assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment and items which can be allocated on reasonable basis. Assets comprise intangible assets (including goodwill), tangible assets, inventories, trade and other receivables, accrued income and prepayments, cash (and cash equivalents). Segment liabilities include trade payables, other payables and accrued expenses.

Unallocated items

Unallocated income statement items include unallocated corporate costs and royalty income. Unallocated assets mainly represent assets relating to corporate function, tax assets and financial assets. Liabilities not allocated to segments are items related to corporate functions, financial and tax liabilities. Investment in associated companies is presented in unallocated assets. Income from associated companies is excluded from segment reporting.

Geographical segments 2005					
EUR million	Europe	Americas	AOA	Unallocated	Consolidated
Net sales	1,172.1	707.1	364.5	_	2,243.7
EBITA	8.1	46.0	18.3	18.0	90.4
Amortization	_	31.2	1.5	_	32.7
(includes goodwill impairment loss)		31.2	1.5		52.7
EBIT.	8.1	14.8	16.8	18.0	57.7
Assets	1,070.4	708.1	375.1	153.7	2,307.3
Liabilities	300.9	133.2	75.0	977.9	1,486.9
Capital expenditure	62.6	25.2	25.5	_	113.4
Depreciation	53.0	29.0	17.7	_	99.8
includes restructuring cost of	63.9	-	6.0	-	69.8
Geographical segments 2004					
EUR million	Europe	Americas	AOA	Unallocated	Consolidated
Net sales	1,151.5	608.7	332.1	_	2,092.3
EBITA	40.1	16.2	19.6	25.4	101.3
Amortization	-	-	-	_	-
EBIT *	40.1	16.2	19.6	25.4	101.3
Assets	1,083.9	646.2	341.4	160.0	2,231.5
Liabilities	296.1	107.4	63.2	968.3	1,435.0
Capital expenditure	45.8	25.0	23.0	0.2	94.0
Depreciation	70.0	42.2	21.7	-	133.9
includes restructuring cost of	28.4	13.5	4.1	-	46.0
Business segments 2005					
EUR million		Consumer Goods	Foodservice	Unallocated	Consolidated
Net sales		1,470.2	773.5	_	2,243.7
EBITA		50.1	22.3	18.0	90.4
Amortization		23.3	9.4	_	32.7
(includes goodwill impairment loss)		0.4.0	10.0	10.0	53.7
EBIT *		26.8	12.9	18.0	57.7
Assets		1,495.4	658.2	153.7	2,307.3
Capital expenditure		65.6	47.7	_	113.4
includes restructuring cost of		39.5	30.3	-	69.8
Business segments 2004		Consumer Coods	Foodcorvico	Unallocated	Concolidated
EUR million		Consumer Goods	Foodservice	Unallocated	Consolidated
Net sales		1,387.9	704.4	- 25.4	2,092.3
EBITA Amortization		50.7	25.2	25.4	101.3
Amortization		- E0.7	75.2	75.4	101.0
EBIT *		50.7	25.2	25.4	101.3
Assets		1,424.6	646.9	160.0	2,231.5
Capital expenditure		68.5	25.3	0.2	94.0
*includes restructuring cost of		32.8	13.2	_	46.0

3. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

EUR million	2005	2004
Royalties	26.4	22.6
Release of provisions	1.6	6.8
Leasing Income	1.7	2.0
Insurance compensations	4.4	5.4
Grants	0.3	0.7
Gain on disposal of fixed assets	3.0	0.8
Other	9.4	5.2
Total	46.8	43.5
4. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES		
EUR million	2005	2004
Impairment of goodwill and amortization of other intangible assets	36.0	4.5
Restructuring writedowns	36.1	-
Other	13.9	9.3
Total	86.0	13.8
5. PERSONNEL EXPENSES EUR million	2005	2004
Wages and salaries	441.3	426.9
Compulsory social security contributions	52.4	53.8
Pensions		
Defined benefit plans	6.5	-1.8
Defined contribution plans	8.1	6.2
Other post employment benefits	7.8	0.8
Share-based payments	1.4	0.8
Other personnel costs	25.7	32.3
Total	543.2	519.0
Remuneration paid by the parent company to the members of the Board of Directors as well as the CEO of Huhtamäki Oyj (10 people)	0.9	1.8
The CEO of Huhtamäki Oyj is entitled to retirement at the age of 60. (See note 28)		
Average number of personnel	2005	2004

18

Group Huhtamäki Oyj 15,652

768

15,294

783

6. DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT

EUR million	2005	2004
Depreciation and amortization by function:		
Production	91.3	123.6
Sales and marketing	0.3	0.3
Research and development	0.5	0.3
Administration	4.0	3.6
Goodwill	32.7	_
Other	3.7	6.1
Total	132.5	133.9
Depreciation and amortization by asset type:		
Buildings	11.3	17.8
Machinery and equipment	85.2	111.6
Goodwill	32.7	_
Other intangible assets	3.3	4.5
Total	132.5	133.9
Impairments by asset type:		
Goodwill	32.7	-
Total	32.7	_

Production depreciation includes 29,5 MEUR restructuring costs in year 2004; see Note 1.

7. NET FINANCIAL ITEMS

Gains and losses on fair value hedges are reported net of the gain or loss on the hedged item. Taxes included in other financial expenses are taxes payable in some jurisdictions on financial transactions. Only FX revaluation gains and losses arising from purely financial exposures such as loans denominated in foreign currencies are reported in other financial items.

EUR million	2005	2004
Interest income	3.9	4.6
Dividend income	0.4	0.2
Gain on fair value hedges	1.0	0.7
FX revaluation gains	3.9	1.9
Other financial income	4.9	2.6
Interest expense	-38.9	-39.3
Net financial expense from trading assets		-0.1
Loss on fair value hedges	-2.5	-0.5
FX revaluation losses	-3.0	-2.6
Bank fees, taxes and stock exchange expenses	-2.1	-1.3
Other financial expense	-7.6	-4.5
Loss on net monetary position in hyperinflationary units	0.5	-0.2
Total	-36.9	-36.6

8. INCOME TAXES

EUR million	2005	2004
Current period taxes	16.9	19.8
Previous period taxes	-47.3	1.3
Deferred tax expense	42.4	-8.0
Total	12.0	13.1
Profit before taxes	21.4	65.5
Tax calculated at domestic rates	5.6	19.2
Effect of different tax rates in foreign subsidiaries	1.6	3.1
Income not subject to tax	-3.8	-10.8
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes	2.3	4.0
Goodwill amortization	0.1	-
Utilization of previously unrecognised tax losses	-5.1	0.1
Effect of changed tax rates	0.0	-1.3
Valuation allowance	-31.1	-
Changes in tax provisions	44.1	
Other items	-1.4	-1.2
Tax charge	12.0	13.1

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders by weighted average number of shares outstanding i.e. excluding treasury shares. In calculations of diluted earnings per share, the weighted average of shares is adjusted by the dilutive effect of stock options outstanding during the period. (See note 21).

EUR million	2005	2004
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company (basic/diluted)	6.9	50.4
Thousands of shares	2005	2004
Weighted average number of shares outstanding	98,502	96,735
Effect of issued share options	995	684
Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding	99,497	97,419
Basic earnings per share (EUR)	0.07	0.52
Diluted earnings per share (EUR)	0.07	0.52

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

			Other intangible assets		
EUR million	Goodwill	Intangible rights	(incl. software)	Total 2005	Total 2004
Acquisition cost at January 1	766.2	2.7	31.2	800.1	811.5
Additions	_	1.8	1.2	3.0	1.0
Disposals	-13.5	-0.9	-1.3	-15.7	-1.1
Intra-balance sheet transfer	-2.8	-	3.4	0.6	1.1
Changes in exchange rates	41.9	0.4	1.4	43.6	-12.4
Acquisition cost at December 31	791.7	4.0	35.9	831.6	800.1
Accumulated amortization at January 1	198.3	1.2	25.2	224.7	224.3
Accumulated amortization on disposals and transfers	-6.9	-0.1	1.9	-5.1	-0.9
Amortization during the financial year	_	0.2	3.1	3.3	4.5
Impairments	32.7	_	_	32.7	_
Changes in exchange rates	21.5	0.1	0.4	22.0	-3.2
Accumulated amortization at December 31	245.7	1.4	30.5	277.6	224.7
Book value at December 31, 2005	546.0	2.6	5.4	554.0	
Book value at December 31, 2004	567.9	1.5	6.0		575.4

For write-off and impairment of goodwill, see note 6.

Impairment charge

As a result of goodwill impairment testing, a 32.7 MEUR impairment charge is recognized during 2005. From the charge 30.3 MEUR relates to North America's cash generating unit and 2.4 MEUR to units without significant goodwill. The impairment charge is included in Other operating expenses in the income statement.

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing goodwill

The following cash-generating units have significant carrying amounts of goodwill:

EUR million	2005	2004
North America	206.1	218.9
Rigid Europe	66.3	75.6
FFF Europe	174.4	174.4
	446.8	468.9
Multiple units without significant goodwill	99.2	99.0
Total	546.0	567.9

The recoverable amount is based on value in use calculations. Those calculations use cash flow projections based on actual EBIT and five-year business forecasts. Cash flows for a further 20-year period are extrapolated using a one per cent growth rate. Management view this growth rate as being appropriate for the business, given the long time horizon of the testing period. This growth rate has been applied consistently to all units. The pre-tax discount rates used in discounting the projected cash flows are as follows; North America 9.5 percent (2004: 7.2 percent), Rigid Europe 10.3 percent (2004: 8.3 percent), and FFF Europe 8.3 percent (2004: 7.1 percent). The multiple units without significant goodwill represent smaller scale units in other geographic regions. The pre-tax discount rates used in the smaller scale units without significant goodwill range from 7.2 percent to 22.3 percent (2004: from 7.1 percent).

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the units recoverable amount is based would not cause any units carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

11. TANGIBLE ASSETS

EUR million	Land	Buildings and constructions	Machinery and equipment	Construction in progress and advance payments	Other tangible assets	Total 2005	Total 2004
Acquisition cost at January 1	30.5	288.1	1,020.5	61.4	53.9	1,454.4	1,401.3
Additions	0.3	2.1	25.7	79.2	3.0	110.3	92.9
Disposals	-4.7	-17.6	-75.4	-0.2	-5.0	-102.9	-12.4
Intra-balance sheet transfer	_	0.5	68.8	-69.6	2.4	2.1	-1.6
Changes in exchange rates	2.0	16.2	51.0	7.1	1.4	77.7	-25.8
Acquisition cost at December 31	28.1	289.3	1,090.6	77.9	55.7	1,541.6	1,454.4
Accumulated depreciation at January 1	0.9	84.6	517.5	_	34.7	637.7	531.5
Accumulated depreciation on disposals and transfers	-0.1	-2.7	-54.8	_	-5.0	-62.6	-8.5
Depreciation during the financial year	0.1	11.2	80.4	_	4.8	96.5	129.4
Impairments	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Changes in exchange rates	0.1	3.3	16.4	_	0.9	20.8	-14.7
Accumulated depreciation at December 31	1.0	96.4	559.5	-	35.4	692.4	637.7
Book value at 31 December 2005	27.0	192.9	531.1	77.9	20.3	849.2	_
Book value at 31 December 2004	29.6	203.5	503.0	61.4	19.2	_	816.7
Value of financial leased assets included in	n book val	ue					
2005	-	0.6	3.0	0.0	0.0	3.6	-
2004	_	0.7	0.3	_	-	_	1.0

12. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group has investments in the following associates:

The Group has investments in the following associates.		Onwership	Onwership
Company	Country	2005	2004
Arabian Paper Products Co.	Saudi-Arabia	40.0 %	40.0 %
Hiatus B.V.	Netherlands	50.0 %	50.0 %
Allobi AB	Sweden	_	25.0 %

Allobi AB, Sweden is on December 31, 2005 not anymore included as associated company, because the ownership has fallen under 20 %.

EUR million	2005	2004	
Book value at January 1	1.6	1.5	
Share of results	0.6	0.8	
Dividends	-0.4	-0.7	
Divestments	-0.1	_	
Book value at December 31	1.7	1.6	

Summary financial information on associates (100%) is as follows:

2005:

EUR million	Assets	Liabilities	Equity	Net Sales	Profit for the period
Arabian Paper Products Co., Saudi-Arabia	6.2	3.0	3.2	8.8	1.1
Hiatus B.V., Netherlands	1.6	0.3	1.3	2.7	0.3

2004:

EUR million	Assets	Liabilities	Equity	Net Sales	Profit for the period
Arabian Paper Products Co., Saudi-Arabia	4.5	1.8	2.7	8.2	1.0
Hiatus B.V., Netherlands	1.7	0.3	1.4	2.3	0.4
Allobi AB, Sweden	4.1	3.5	0.6	4.4	0.0

13. JOINT VENTURES

The Group has a 50 per cent interest in the following joint ventures:

Name	Holding %
Huhtamaki EarthShell A.p.S., Denmark (in liquidation)	50.0
Laminor S.A., Brazil	50.0

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following items that represent the Group's interest in the assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses of the joint venture.

EUR million	2005	2004
Non-current assets	6.5	5.4
Current assets	5.8	3.0
Non-current liabilities	-4.2	-2.7
Current liabilities	-5.2	-4.3
Net assets/ (liabilities)	2.9	1.4
Income	17.2	10.9
Expenses	-16.1	-10.9
Profit for the period	1.1	0.0

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available for sale investments include listed and unlisted shares. Listed shares are measured at fair value. For unlisted shares the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in which case the investment is carried at cost.

EUR million	2005	2004
Book value at January 1	1.7	1.8
Additions	0.1	_
Disposals	_	-0.1
Change in fair value	_	_
Book value at December 31	18	1 7

15. INTEREST BEARING RECEIVABLES

	20	005	200	04
EUR million	Carrying amount	Fair value	Carrying amount	Fair value
Current				
Loan receivables	0.9	0.9	10.7	10.7
Finance lease receivables	16.3	17.8	4.8	6.3
Current interest bearing receivables	17.2	18.7	15.5	17.0
Non-current				
Loan receivables	3.9	4.1	4.0	4.3
Finance lease receivables	0.4	0.4	16.0	17.0
Non-current interest bearing receivables	4.3	4.5	20.0	21.3

Fair values have been calculated by discounting future cashflows of each major receivable at the appropriate market interest rate prevailing at closing date. Receivables payable on demand have a fair value equal to their carrying amount, which would be recovered if the receivables were disposed of at closing date.

Finance lease receivables

EUR million	2005	2004
Finance lease receivables payable as follows:		
In less than one year	16.8	5.9
Between one and five years	0.5	16.4
Total minimum lease receivables	17.3	22.3
Present value of minimum lease receivables		
In less than one year	16.3	4.8
Between one and five years	0.4	16.0
Total present value of minimum lease receivables	16.7	20.8
Unearned future financial income	0.6	1.5

Finance lease receivables arise from the lease of a factory building in 1996. Minimum lease payments include a terminal payment for title transfer at the end of lease term in 2006. This terminal payment is based on a mutual put/call option included in the lease contract with such terms and conditions as to make it reasonably certain either Huhtamaki or the lessee will exercise the option. Lease contract provides for annual inflation adjustments which are excluded from minimum lease payments due to their contingent nature.

16. DEFERRED TAXES

EUR million	2005	2004
Deferred tax assets by types of temporary differences		
Tangible assets	3.5	20.9
Employee benefits	25.1	22.5
Provisions	7.5	7.5
Unused tax losses	9.7	34.5
Other temporary differences	15.5	14.1
Total	61.2	99.5
Deferred tax liabilities		
Tangible assets	73.1	86.4
Employee benefits	26.1	21.2
Other temporary differences	27.6	12.4
Total	126.8	119.9
Net deferred tax liabilities	65.5	20.4
Reflected in balance sheet as follows:		
Deferred tax assets	16.0	21.8
Deferred tax liabilities	81.5	42.2

December 31, 2005 the group had EUR 170 million (2004: EUR 117 million) worth of deductable temporary differences, for which no deferred tax asset was recognised.

Deferred taxes recognized directly in equity are presented in note 27.

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The group has established a number of pension plans for its personnel throughout the world. Pension coverage is provided in accordance with rules and practices in the respective countries. In Finland pensions are mainly covered by the statutory pension system (TEL system). In certain countries with traditionally low statutory pension coverage, additional pension plans are organized. Some schemes can include early retirement and disability.

The main countries that have defined benefit plans are USA, UK and Germany, whose aggregate share comprises over 90% of the group consolidated defined benefit obligation for pension and other post-retirement benefits.

Most of the defined benefit plans are organized through pension funds. The assets of these plans are held separately from the assets of the group. Subsidiaries' funding of the plans meets local authority requirements. The calculations for defined benefit plans have been made by qualified actuaries.

EUR million	2005	2004
The amounts recognized in the Balance sheet:		
Present value of funded obligations	408.8	346.6
Fair value of plan assets	-375.0	-323.1
Present value of unfunded obligations	71.8	64.8
Unrecognized actuarial gains (–) and losses (+)	-57.8	-21.6
Unrecognized past service costs (–)	0.0	-0.1
Unrecognized assets	1.9	1.6
Net asset (-) or liability (+)	49.7	68.2
Reflected to Balance Sheet as follows:		
Pension assets	68.2	55.6
Pension liabilities	117.8	123.8
Expenses recognised in the income statement:		
Current service cost	8.6	10.5
Interest cost	18.8	21.4
Expected return on plan assets	-20.1	-22.0
Actuarial gains (–) and losses (+)	1.3	1.0
Recognized past service costs	-0.6	-2.4
Effect of any curtailments or settlements	-1.5	-10.3
Total defined benefit expenses	6.5	-1.8
Actual return of pension assets	29.0	25.0
The expenses of defined benefit plans are allocated by function as follows:		
Cost of goods sold	4.2	3.8
Sales and marketing	0.8	0.5
Administration costs	1.5	-6.1
Functional split of expense	6.5	-1.8
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:		
Opening defined benefit obligation	411.5	424.1
Translation difference	23.7	-12.3
Service cost	11.7	7.2
Interest cost	22.0	20.0
Acturial gains (-) and losses (+)	42.4	18.5
Losses (+) and gains (-) on curt	-1.3	-6.9
Liabilities extinguished on settlements	-0.7	-9.5
Benefits paid	-28.8	-29.6
Total defined benefit obligation	480.5	411.5

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:	2005	2004
Opening fair value of plan asset	-323.2	-329.8
Translation difference	-21.4	12.9
Expected return	-23.9	-21.5
Acturial gains (-) and losses (+)	-8.7	-0.9
Assets distributed on settlements	0.0	7.2
Contribution by employer	-11.6	-4.0
Contribution by employee	-3.1	-2.4
Benefits paid	16.9	15.3
Total plan assets	-375.0	-323.2
Expected contribution to defined contribution plan during next year (2006)	18.1	
The major categories of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets:		
European equities (%)	19.9	17.3
North America equities (%)	20.1	20.8
European bonds (%)	8.4	8.2
North American bonds (%)	14.5	14.0
Property (%)	0.6	1.1
Other (%)	36.5	38.6
· /	100.0	100.0
Principal actuarial assumptions: Discount rate (%)	2005	2004
Europe	4.0 - 6.0	5.0 - 6.0
Americas	5.8	6.25
Asia, Oceania and Africa	3.5 - 10.0	3.5 - 10.0
Expected return on plan asset (%)		
Europe	4.3 - 7.0	5.5 - 7.2
Americas	8.5	8.5
Asia, Oceania and Africa	3.5 - 10.0	3.5 - 10.0
Expected salary increases (%)		
Europe	1.5 - 3.9	1.2 - 3.8
Americas	4.3	4.5
Asia, Oceania and Africa	3.0 - 8.0	3.0 - 8.0
Future pension increases (%)		
Europe	1.5 - 3.0	1.4 - 3.0
Americas	1.0	1.0
Employees opting for early retirement (%)		
Europe	2.0	-
Annual increase in healthcare costs (%)		
Americas	9.0	10.0
Asia, Oceania and Africa	7.5	-
Future change in max. state healthcare benefit (%) Americas	9.0	10.0
One percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend would have		
One percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend would have the following effetcs on defined benefit obligation:	2005	
One percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend would have the following effetcs on defined benefit obligation: 1 % p. increase of healthcare	2005 4.7	

Amounts for the currect and previous periods are as follows:	2005	2004
Defined benefit pension plans		
Defined benefit obligation	414.9	353.1
Fair value of plan assets	-375.0	-323.2
Surplus/(deficit)	39.9	30.0
Experience adj.on pension plan liabilities	0.1	-0.7
Experience adj. on pension plan assets	3.7	-3.0
Post-employment medical benefits and other defined benefits:		
Defined benefit obligation	65.6	58.3
Experience adj.on pension plan liabilities	-1.6	1.3
18. INVENTORIES		
EUR million	2005	2004
Raw and packaging material	108.5	94.9
Work-in-process	46.1	46.7
Finished goods	154.3	146.7
Advance payments	2.4	1.5
Inventories Total	311.3	289.8

The value at cost for finished goods amounts to EUR 170.8 million (2004: EUR 164.7 million). An allowance of EUR 18.8 million (2004: EUR 18.0 million) has been established for obsolete items. The total value of inventories include EUR 0.1 million resulting from reversals of previously written down values (2004: EUR 0.4 million).

19. TRADE AND OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES

EUR million	2005	2004
Trade receivables	338.2	306.9
Other receivables	32.4	25.3
Accrued interest and other financial items	1.5	6.2
Other accrued income and prepaid expenses	28.6	23.1
Total	400.7	361.5

Other accrued income and prepaid expenses include prepayments for goods, accrued royalty income, rebates and other miscellaneous accruals.

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

EUR million	2005	2004
Cash and bank	36.0	26.9
Marketable securities	1.6	1.7
Total	37.6	28.6

21. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Share capital	Number of shares	Share capital EUR	Share premium EUR	Treasury shares EUR	Total EUR
January 1, 2004	96,161,703	344,157,492,80	85,445,297.30	-46,509,623.20	383,093,166.90
Subscription through option rights June 16, 2004	249,000	846,600.00	1,297,290.00	-	2,143,890.00
Subscription through option rights June 30, 2004	52,600	178,840.00	201,648.00	_	380,488.00
Subscription through option rights July 14, 2004	266,612	906,480.80	818,843.84	_	1,725,324.64
Subscription through option rights August 24, 2004	68,200	231,880.00	249.200.00	_	481,080.00
Subscription through option rights September 9, 2004	297,908	1,012,887.20	1,004,157.12	_	2,017,044.32
Subscription through option rights October 21, 2004	51,000	173,400.00	223,528.00	_	396,928.00
Subscription through option rights November 11, 2004	1,188,660	4,041,444.00	6,167,110.60	-	10,208,554.60
December 31, 2004	98,335,683	351,549,024.80	95,407,074.86	-46,509,623.20	400,446,476.46
Subscription through option rights June 13, 2005	117,400	399,160.00	397,832.00	_	796,992.20
Subscription through option rights July 25, 2005	147,200	500,480.00	374,752.00	-	875,232.00
Subscription through option rights August 30, 2005	22,600	76,840.00	96,036.00	_	172,876.00
Subscription through option rights October 3, 2005	66,200	225,080.00	226.170.00	_	451,250.00
Subscription through option rights October 25, 2005	57,400	195,160.00	189,680.00	-	384,840.00
Subscription through option rights November 29, 2005	31,800	108,120.00	105,748.00		213,868.00
December 31, 2005	98,778,283	353,053,864.80	96,797,293.06	-46,509,623.20	403,341,534.66

Total number of shares is 103,839,372 (December 2004: 103,396,772). The counter value of a share is EUR 3.40, and the maximum share capital amounts to EUR 1,000 million. All issued shares are fully paid.

Based on an authorization given at the Annual General Meeting on March 25, 2002 the company has acquired in total 5,061,089 own shares during 2002 and 2003. After 2003 no own shares have been acquired or disposed and on December 31, 2005 the Board had no authorization to acquire own shares. The Annual General Meeting on March 30, 2005 gave the Board an authorization to decide on conveyance of the company's own shares within one year's time. This authorization was not exercised during 2005.

Members of Board of Directors and the CEO of Huhtamäki Oyj owned on December 31, 2005 a total of 41,896 shares (December 2004: 72,512 shares). These shares represent 0.04 % (December 2004: 0.07 %) of total number of shares and voting rights.

Distribution of shareholding, December 31, 2005 *

Number of shares held	Number of shareholders	% of shareholders	Total number of shares	% of shares
1-100	2,830	13.96	170,885	0.17
101-1.000	12,110	59.75	5,533,686	5.33
1.001-10.000	4,852	23.94	13,031,289	12.55
10.001-100.000	389	1.92	10,186,643	9.81
100.001-1.000.000	74	0.37	19,600,977	18.88
over 1.000.000	13	0.06	55,240,516	53.20
Total	20,268	100.00	103,763,996	99.93

of total number of shares 75,376 (0.07%) shares are held in the joint book-entry account.

By shareholder category	% of shares
Financial and insurance institutions	9.3
Non-profit organizations	29.9
Households	17.9
Non-corporate public sector	12.1
Corporations	9.5
Non-Finnish shareholding (of which 17,8 % under nominee registration within financial institutions)	21.3
Total	100.0

Largest shareholders, December 31, 2005*	Shares/votes	%
The Finnish Cultural Foundation	16,281,185	16.5
Society of Swedish Literature in Finland	4,400,800	4.5
Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company	3,168,619	3.2
The Association for the Finnish Cultural Foundation	2,150,000	2.2
Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company	1,753,312	1.8
Odin Norden	1,670,500	1.7
The Finnish State Pension Fund	1,400,000	1.4
Etera Mutual Pension Insurance Company	1,006,230	1.0
Sampo Finnish Equity Fund	913,750	0.9
Pohjola Finland Value Fund	880,000	0.9

^{*} Excl. nominee registation within financial institutions and own shares acquired by Huhtamäki Oyj.

OPTION RIGHTS

Option Rights 2000 Plan

The Annual General Meeting held on April 12, 2000 approved the issue of up to 900,000 option rights to certain members of the management of Huhtamäki Oyj and its subsidiaries. The option rights are marked as follows: 300,000 with A, 300,000 with B and 300,000 with C. The Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 26, 2002 resolved to amend the terms of the option plan so that each option right entitles its holder to subscribe for four (4) shares. If exercised in full, the option rights will entitle to the subscription for a total of 3,600,000 shares whereby the share capital would be increased by a maximum amount of EUR 12,240,000 representing approximately 3,5 per cent of the outstanding share capital of Huhtamäki Oyj. At the end of the year 2005 the Option Rights 2000 Plan had 120 participants. The option rights A are listed on the Helsinki Exchanges as of May 2, 2002, option rights B as of May 2, 2003 and option rights C as of May 3, 2004. The table below depicts the share subscription periods and subscription prices for each option right. During the year 2005 the exercise of 110.650 option rights under the Option Rights 2000 Plan resulted in the issue of 442.600 new shares and the increase of the share capital with EUR 1.504.840.

Option Rights 2003 Plan

The Annual General Meeting of held on March 28, 2003 approved the issue of up to 2,250,000 option rights to certain members of the management of Huhtamäki Oyj and its subsidiaries. The option rights are marked as follows: 750,000 with 2003 A, 750,000 with 2003 B and 750,000 with 2003 C. If exercised in full, the option rights will entitle to the subscription for a total of 2,250,000 shares whereby the share capital would increased by a maximum amount of EUR 7,650,000 representing approximately 2,2 per cent of the outstanding share capital of Huhtamäki Oyj. The option rights 2003 A are listed on the Helsinki Exchanges as of May 2, 2005. Huhtamäki Oyj will apply for the listing of the option rights 2003 B in Helsinki Exchanges as of May 2, 2006. At the end of year 2003 the Option Rights 2003 Plan had 80 participants.

Option Right	Number of shares one option right entitles to subscribe for	Subscription price for one share ¹	Subscription period ²
2000 A	4	EUR 7.20	May 2, 2002 - October 31, 2006
2000 B	4	EUR 5.66	May 2, 2003 - October 31, 2006
2000 C	4	EUR 10.15	May 2, 2004 - October 31, 2006
2003 A	1	EUR 8.34	May 2, 2005 - October 31, 2009
2003 B	1	EUR 10.60	May 2, 2006 - October 31, 2009
2003 C	1	EUR 12.73	May 2, 2007 - October 31, 2009
	1 1		, .

¹⁾ Subscription price before deduction of the year 2005 dividend.

²⁾ The period of subscription shall be annually between May 2 and October 31 on such days as defined by the Board of Directors of the company.

General

Share options to key management personnel are granted under a service condition. In case the employee ceases to be employed by Huhtamäki Oyj or any of its subsidiary before the share subscription period has commenced, the share options will be forfeited. Shares subscribed for pursuant to option rights shall entitle to the distribution of dividend for the accounting period during which such shares were subscribed and paid for. Right to vote and other shareholders' rights attached to the shares subscribed for under the option rights shall become effective as of the registration of the increase of the share capital. Pursuant to the option rights issued, an aggregate maximum number of 4,738,480 new shares may be subscribed representing approximately 4.6 % of the total number of votes on December 31, 2005.

Information relating to the amount of option rights outstanding 2005 and 2004

Amount of option rights (pcs)	Weighted average exercise price/share EUR 2005	Options 2005	Shares based on option rights 2005	Weighted average exercise price/share EUR 2004	Options 2004	Shares based on option rights 2004
At the beginning of the financial year	9.12	1,719,030	3,275,553	8.43	1,691,871	4,953,984
Granted	12.55	750,500	750,500	10.87	682,500	691,500
Exercised	6.54	110,650	442,600	7.98	543,495	2,173,980
Forfeited and expired	10.61	84,500	84,500	9.24	111,846	195,951
At the end of the financial year	10.32	2,274,380	3,498,953	9.50	1,719,030	3,275,553
Exercisable at the end of the period	8.45	974,880		8.54	518,841	

Share options of the Option Rights 2003 Plan, which have been granted after November 7, 2002 and which have not vested before January 1, 2005, have been recognized as an expense according to IFRS 2, see Note 5. Options granted before November 7, 2002 (Option Right Plan 2000) have not been recognized as an expense.

The fair value of options granted is measured using the Black-Scholes model taking into account the market terms and conditions of agreement when pricing the options. The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility of Huhtamäki Oyj share and adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information. Paid dividends are deducted from the exercise price of the options. Therefore the impact of dividends on the fair value of the option at grant date is not taken into account when pricing the options. The fair value is spread over the period under which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that will be vested.

Share option plan	2003 A	2003 B	2003 C
Fair value at grant date	1.89	2.13	2.30
Grant date	September 30, 2003	September 30, 2004	September 30, 2005
Number of outstanding options at December 31, 2005	566,689	614,500	685,000
Exercise price	9.097	10.980	13.490
Share price at grant date	9.0	10.8	13.5
Expected volatility (%)	21.5	21.1	20.0
Option life as weigthed average at grant date (years)	3.8	3.3	2.8
Risk-free interest rate (%)	3.0	3.6	3.0

30

22. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

	20	005	2004			
EUR million	Carrying amount	Fair value	Carrying amount	Fair value		
Current						
Loans from financial institutions						
current portion	14.1	14.4	11.9	12.3		
Other loans						
current portion	0.2	0.2	0.4	0.4		
Finance lease liabilities						
current portion	0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8		
Short-term loans	351.4	351.4	379.5	379.5		
Total	366.5	366.8	392.6	393.0		
Long-term						
Loans from financial institutions	398.9	402.9	367.2	372.8		
Other long-term loans	3.2	3.2	2.5	2.5		
Finance lease liabilities	2.0	2.0	1.0	1.0		
Total	404.1	408.1	370.7	376.3		
Pension loans						
From pension foundations	_		0.3			
Total	-		0.3			

All interest bearing liabilities are other liabilities as defined in IAS 39 and as such are carried at amortized cost. Fair values have been calculated by discounting future cash flows at the appropriate market interest rate prevailing at closing date. Loans from pension insurance companies have been transferred to Loans from financial institutions according to their nature (same applies to 2004 comparison).

	Loans from financial institutions	Finance lease liabilities	Other loans
Repayment			
2006	14.1	0.8	0.2
2007	40.4	0.8	0.0
2008	35.3	0.5	0.1
2009	8.8	0.3	0.1
2010	213.2	0.1	_
2011-	101.2	0.2	3.0

Finance lease liabilities

EUR million	2005	2004
Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:		
In less than one year	1.0	0.9
Between one and five years	1.8	0.9
In over five years	0.3	0.2
Total minimum lease payments	3.1	2.0
Present value of minimum lease payments		
In less than one year	0.9	0.8
Between one and five years	1.7	0.7
In over five years	0.3	0.3
Total present value of minimum lease payments	2.8	1.8
Future finance charges	0.3	0.2

23. PROVISIONS

Restructuring provisions include various ongoing projects to streamline operations and to improve efficiencies. These projects are taking place in all regions. Tax provisions are recognized for tax related risks mainly due to changes in the corporate structure. Other provisions include mainly captive insurance provisions and provisions related to divested operations.

EUR million	Restructuring	Taxes	Other	2005 total	2004 total
Provision at January 1, 2005	15.1	70.2	23.4	108.7	97.9
Translation difference	0.0	_	0.4	0.4	-
Provisions made during the year	27.9	3.5	17.8	49.2	27.8
Provisions used during the year	-20.9	_	-10.7	-31.6	-5.6
Unused provisions reversed during the year	-0.1	-44.1	-7.2	-51.4	-11.4
Provision at December 31, 2005	22.0	29.6	23.7	75.4	108.7
Current	22.0		2.2	24.2	24.0
Non-current		29.6	21.5	51.1	84.7

24. TRADE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

EUR million	2005	2004
Trade payables	243.3	217.2
Other payables	28.6	31.6
Accrued interest expense and other financial items	8.4	7.3
Personnel, social security and pensions	63.6	50.0
Other accrued expenses	57.5	48.1
Total	401.4	354.2

Other accrued expenses include accruals for purchases of material, rebates, prepayments and other miscellaneous accruals.

32

25. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS

The objective of the financial risk management is to ensure that the company has access to sufficient funding in the most cost efficient way and to minimize the impact on the company from adverse movements in the financial markets.

Management of financial risks is guided and controlled by a Finance Committee, led by the CEO. The Finance Committee reviews risk reports are on the company's interest bearing balance sheet items, commercial flows and derivatives and approves required measures on a monthly basis.

The Group Treasury Department at the Espoo headquarters is responsible of the company's funding and risk management ans serves the business units in daily financing, foreign exchange transactions and cash management co-ordination.

Currency risk

The company is exposed to exchange rate risk through intracompany cross-border trade, exports and imports, funding of foreign units and currency denominated equities.

Transaction risk: The largest transaction exposures derive from capital flows, imports, exports and royalty receivables. The objective of currency transaction risk management is to protect the company from negative exchange rate movements. Business units are in charge of actively managing their currency risks related to future commercial cash flows, according to policies and limits defined by the business unit and approved by the Finance Committee. As a policy all commercial receivables and payables recorded on the balance sheet and 25 % of probable flows over a minumum 12-month monitoring horizon are always hedged. Eligible hedging instruments are currency forwards and in authorized subsidiaries also currency options. Business units' counterpart in hedging transactions is mainly Huhtamäki Oyj.

Translation risk: As a main rule individual subsidiaries do not carry translation risk as they are financed in local currencies. As an exception, the Finance Committee has approved the use of foreign currency borrowing in countries with high local interest rates, totaling EUR 11.9 million at balance sheet date.

The main translation exposures derive from equities and permanent loans, which in substance form a part of the net investment in US, Australian and UK subsidiaries. The company hedges its translation risks selectively by using foreign currency loans and derivatives. Equity hedging decisions are made by the Finance Committee, who in its decision-making

considers the hedge's estimated impact on the consolidated income statement and balance sheet ratios, long-term cash flows and hedging cost. The company had outstanding translation risk hedges in USD 249 million and in GBP 33 million at balance sheet date. The majority of the hedges are in the form of foreign currency denominated loans.

Interest rate risk

The interest bearing debt exposes the company to interest rate risk, namely re-pricing and price risk caused by interest rate movements. Management of interest rate risk is centralized to the Group Treasury Department.

The company's policy is to maintain in the main debt currencies a duration that matches a benchmark duration target range based on the company's estimated cash flow, selected balance sheet ratios, assumed business cyclicality and also the shape of the yield curve. The objective of interest rate risk management is to reduce the fluctuation of the interest charge, enabling a more stable net income.

The company manages interest rate risk by selection of debt interest periods and by using derivatives such as futures, forward rate agreements, interest rate swaps and options.

Liquidity and re-financing risk

The company maintains sufficient liquidity reserves at all times by efficient cash management structures such as cash pools and overdraft facilities.

The company utilizes a EUR 400 million Finnish commercial paper program and uncommitted credit facilities with relationship banks for short-term financing purposes. The company maintains unused long-term committed credit facilities to ensure financing resources in all circumstances.

Re-financing risk is managed by maintaining a diversified maturity structure of loans and debt facilities, that takes into account the estimated cash flow of the company.

Credit risk

The business units arew responsible for the management of commerical credit risk.

Liquid funds are invested in short-term bank deposits at relationship banks or in government bonds, treasury bills or commerical papers of borrowers with a solid investment grade rating and selected Finnish corporate issuers. Counterpart risk stemming from these investments is considered small and managed by the Group Treasury Department

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTION EXPOSURE

EUR million	December 31, 2005 12 month Commercial Position	December 31, 2004 12 month Commercial Position
Currency		
USD	35	33
AUD	19	22
GBP	35	33
PLN	29	17
Other	46	53
Total	165	157

CURRENCY SPLIT AND REPRICING SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING NET DEBT INCLUDING HEDGES

EUR million	Dece	mber 31, 2	005								Decei	mber 31, 20	004
				Rate	De	ebt reprici	ng in per	iod, incl.	derivative	?S			
Currency	Amount mEUR	Avg. duration	Avg. rate	sensitivity ¹⁾ mEUR	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	Later	Amount mEUR	Avg. duration	Avg. rate
EUR	258	0.7 y	3.6%	1.6	203	6	6	6	6	32	286	1.1 y	3.9%
USD	243	1.7 y	4.9%	0.9	112	19	31	21	41	19	237	1.5 y	4.1%
AUD	46	1.3 y	6.0%	0.1	33		12				45	1.1 y	6.0%
GBP	86	1.1 y	5.2%	0.3	63	9	7	7			65	1.2 y	5.5%
Other	79	0.6 y	9.1%	0.3	71	3	1			4	66	0.6 y	9.8%
Total	712	1.1 y	5.0%	3.2	482	37	57	34	46	54	699	1.2 y	4.8%

¹⁾ Effect of one percentage point rise in market interest rates on the Group's net interest expenses over the following 12 months.

DEBT STRUCTURE

EUR million	Decen	nber 31, 20	05							Dec	ember 31,	2004
8.44	Amount	Amount	T	0001		aturity of f	,			Amount	Amount	T
Debt type	drawn	available	Total	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	Later	drawn	available	Total
Committed revolving facilities	229	326	555	25		55		475		232	317	549
Loans from financial institutions	167		167	94	38	7	7	7	15	181		181
Private placements	117		117	6	6	5	4	27	70	48		48
Commercial Paper Program	257		257	257						302		302
Total	771	326	1,097	382	43	67	11	509	85	763	317	1,080

34

NOMINAL VALUES OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EUR million	December 3	1, 2005							December 31,	2004
	Nominal value		Maturity structure					Nominal value		
Instrument	Gross	Net	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	Later	Gross	Net
Currency forwards										
for transaction risk	91		72	15	4				36	
for translation risk	59		59						50	
for financing purposes	121		121						125	
Currency options										
for transaction risk	1	1	1						6	6
Forward rate agreements and futures contracts										
EUR										
USD										
Interest rate swaps										
EUR	95	95	75					20	125	125
USD	119	119	25	25	17	17	34		128	128
GBP	32	32	9	9		7	7		34	34
Other	12	12			12				11	11
Electricity forward contracts	1		1						1	

FAIR VALUES OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EUR million	December 31, 2005		D	ecember 31, 2004		
Instrument	Positive fair values	Negative fair values	Net fair values	Positive fair values	Negative fair values	Net fair values
Currency forwards						
for transaction risk1)	0.6	-2.6	-2.0	2.8	-0.9	1.9
for translation risk ²⁾	0.1	-0.6	-0.5	0.3	_	0.3
for financing purposes	0.8	-1.4	-0.6	2.6	-1.4	1.2
Currency options						
for transaction risk				0.3		0.3
Forward rate agreements and futures contracts						
EUR						
USD						
Interest rate swaps3)						
EUR	0.1	-1.4	-1.3		-3.6	-3.6
USD	2.5	-0.2	2.3	1.1	-2.4	-1.3
GBP		-0.5	-0.5		-0.4	-0.4
other		-0.2	-0.2		-0.2	-0.2
Electricity forward contracts	0.3		0.3		-0.1	-0.1

¹⁾ Out of the currency forwards, fair value of EUR -2.0 million was designated for cash flow hedges as at December 31, 2005 (EUR 1.8 million at December 31, 2004) and reported in fair value and other reserves.

²⁾ Out of the currency forwards, fair value of EUR -0.5 million was designated for hedges of net investment in foreign subsidiaries as at December 31, 2005 (EUR 0.3 million at December 31, 2004) and reported in translation difference.

^{3]} Fair values of interest rate swaps include accrued interest. Out of the interest rate swaps, fair value of EUR 0.3 million was designated for cash flow hedges as at December 31, 2005 (EUR -5.6 million as at December 31, 2004) out of which EUR 0.5 million was reported in equity in fair value and other reserves and EUR -0.1 million in profit and loss statement as interest expense.

27. FAIR VALUE AND OTHER RESERVES

EUR million	Hedge reserve	Total	
December 31, 2003	-7.7	-7.7	
Cash flow hedge result deferred to equity	-2.3	-2.3	
Cash flow hedge result recognized in P&L	8.5	8.5	
Cash flow hedge result recognised in BS	0.6	0.6	
Deferred taxes	-2.0	-2.0	
December 31, 2004	-2.9	-2.9	
Cash flow hedge result deferred to equity	-2.0	-2.0	
Cash flow hedge result recognized in P&L	4.6	4.6	
Cash flow hedge result recognised in BS	0.0	0.0	
Deferred taxes	0.1	0.1	
December 31, 2005	-0.2	-0.2	

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Huhtamaki Group has related party relationships with its associate companies, Board members, CEO and executive officers (members of the Executive Committee).

Transactions with Directors and executive officers:

EUR million	2005	2004
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits	2.3	2.9

Total compensation in 2005 includes EUR 0.2 million (2004: EUR 0.8 million) long term compensation payments. Total remuneration is included in personnel expenses (see note 5).

Salaries of CEO and board members (thousand euros)

CEO Heikki Takanen	530
Board members	
Mikael Lilius	64
Paavo Hohti	57
Eija Ailasmaa	46
George V. Bayly	46
Robertus van Gestel	47
Anthony J.B. Simon	46
Veli Sundbäck	22
Jukka Suominen	36
Jukka Viinanen	11
Total	903

Based on Group's pension plan executive officers are entitled to retirement at the age of 60.

Directors and executive officers owned in total 63,896 shares at December 31, 2005 (December 2004: 90,512 shares). Executive officers owned in total 417,000 option rights at December 31, 2005 (December 2004: 355,800 option rights). The option rights entitle the holders to subscribe in total 453,000 shares representing 0.44 % of total shares and voting rights (2004: 523,200 shares representing 0.51 % of shares and votes). Option rights owned by executive officers have the same terms and conditions as those owned by other option rights holders.

36

Transactions with associate companies

Guarantee obligations: For joint ventures

For external parties

Transactions with associate companies are carried out at fair market prices as listed below:

EUR million	2005	2004
Purchase of goods	2.2	2.2
29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS		
EUR million	2005	2004
Operating lease payments:		
Not later than 1 year	14.4	11.3
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years	25.7	17.6
Later than 5 years	26.5	37.7
Total	66.6	66.6
30. CONTINGENCIES		
EUR million	2005	2004
Capital expenditure commitments:		
Under 1 year	10.4	4.6
Mortgages:		
For own debt	14.9	15.5

5.2

0.3

3.1

4.6

Huhtamaki 2001-2005

	FAS			IFRS		
EUR million	2001	2002	2002	2003	2004	2005
Net sales	2,382.4	2,238.7	2,238.7	2,108.3	2,092.3	2,243.7
Increase in net sales (%)	-28.0	-6.0	-6.0	-5.8	-0.8	7.2
Net sales outside Finland	2,301.1	2,133.6	2,133.6	2,001.9	1,986.7	2,136.3
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization	334.4	326.8	324.3	239.7	235.2	190.2
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization/net sales (%)	14.0	14.6	14.5	11.4	11.2	8.5
Earnings before interest and taxes	178.3	175.1	172.6	96.6	101.3	57.7
Earnings before interest and taxes/ net sales (%)	7.5	7.8	7.7	4.6	4.8	2.6
Profit before taxes	130.3	131.1	124.8	54.8	65.5	21.4
Profit before taxes/net sales (%)	5.5	5.9	5.6	2.6	3.1	1.0
Net income	87.1	88.3	87.3	36.3	52.4	9.4
Shareholders' equity	874.6	857.7	805.5	755.2	781.8	802.0
Return on investment (%)	9.6	10.0	10.1	6.2	6.7	4.0
Return on shareholders' equity (%)	8.6	10.5	10.7	5.0	6.7	1.3
Solidity (%)	36.0	35.4	32.6	33.0	35.7	35.6
Net debt to equity	0.94	0.97	1.04	1.00	0.88	0.87
Current ratio	0.94	0.85	0.81	0.79	0.89	0.96
Times interest earned	6.58	7.33	6.89	5.97	6.79	5.43
Capital expenditure	144.0	139.5	139.5	117.7	94.0	113.4
Capital expenditure/net sales (%)	6.0	6.2	6.2	5.6	4.5	5.1
Research and development	12.8	12.3	12.3	14.0	17.9	18.7
Research and development/ net sales (%)	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.7	0.9	0.8
Number of shareholders (December 31)	15,669	15,943	15,943	18,806	18,303	20,268
Personnel (December 31)	16,417	15,909	15,909	15,508	15,531	14,935

Per share data

Comparison figures (2001) adjusted for the 3:1 bonus issue in August 2002

		F.A	FAS		IFRS		
		2001	2002	2002	2003	2004	2005
Earnings per share	EUR	0.74	0.88	0.86	0.38	0.52	0.07
Earnings per share (diluted)				0.86	0.38	0.52	0.07
Dividend, nominal	EUR	0.31	0.38	0.38	0.38	0.38	0.38(1
Dividend/earnings per share	%	41.9	43.2	44.2	100.0	73.1	542.9 ⁽¹
Dividend yield	%	3.5	4.0	4.0	4.1	3.2	2.7 ⁽¹⁾
Shareholders' equity per share	EUR	8.64	8.79	8.26	7.85	7.95	8.12
Average number of shares adjusted for share issue		117,117,696	100,769,970	100,769,970	96,292,220	96,734,981	96,501,625
Number of shares adjusted for share issue at year end		101,215,792	97,547,792	97,547,792	96,161,703	98,335,683	98,778,283
P/E ratio		12.0	10.9	11.1	24.6	22.8	198.7
Market capitalization at December 31	EUR million	898.3	931.6	931.6	899.1	1,167.2	1,374.0
Trading volume	units	41,359,940	66,996,986	66,996,986	51,050,523	70,919,815	84,417,331
In relation to average number of shares ⁽²⁾	%	35.3	66.5	66.5	53.0	73.3	85.7
Development of share price							
Lowest trading price	EUR	6.13	8.22	8.22	7.89	9.40	11.37
Highest trading price	EUR	9.25	12.38	12.38	9.85	12.30	14.88
Trading price at Dec 31	EUR	8.88	9.55	9.55	9.35	11.87	13.91

^{1) 2005:} Board's proposal

²⁾ Excluding treasury shares

Definitions for key indicators

Earnings per share = Profit before taxes – minority interest – taxes

Average number of shares outstanding

Earnings per share =

(diluted)

Diluted profit before taxes – minority interest – taxes

Average fully diluted number of shares outstanding

Dividend yield = 100 x issue-adjusted dividend

Issue-adjusted share price at December 31

Shareholders' equity

per share =

Equity

Issue-adjusted number of shares at December 31

P/E ratio = Issue-adjusted share price at December 31

Earnings per share

Market capitalization = Number of shares outstanding multiplied by the corresponding

share prices on the stock exchange at December 31

Return on investment = 100 x (Profit before taxes + interest expenses + net other financial expenses)

Balance sheet total – Interest-free liabilities (average)

Return on equity = 100 x (Profit before taxes – taxes)

Equity + minority interest (average)

Net debt to equity = Interest bearing net debt

Equity + minority interest (average)

Solidity = 100 x (Equity + minority interest)

Balance sheet total – advances received

Current ratio = Current assets

Current liabilities

Times interest earned = Earnings before interest and taxes + depreciation and amortization

Net interest expenses

List of subsidiaries

The list contains operative companies, holding companies and other subsidiaries with sufficient assets. A complete statutory list is enclosed in the official statutory accounts, which may be be obtained from the company on request. Foreign subsidiaries' nominal values are expressed in local currency (1,000). Subsidiaries' book values are expressed in holding company's currency (1,000).

Name	Number of shares	Size of holding, %		Nominal value		Book value	Group holding, %
Huhtamäki Oyj's shareholdin	g in subsidiaries:						
Huhtamaki Finance B.V.	6,534,313	100.0	EUR	653,431	EUR	2,060,188	100.0
Huhtamaki Portugal SGPS, Lda	2	50.0	EUR	251	EUR	1,975	100.0
Pacific World Packaging (International) Ltd.	182,502	100.0	HKD	183	EUR	9,512	100.0
Partner Polarcup Oy	78,694	100.0	EUR	13,236	EUR	13,236	100.0
Huhtamaki Argentina S.A.	1,400,000	91.2	ARS	1,400	EUR	1,803	100.0
Huhtamaki Hungary Kft	1	100.0	HUF	67,240	EUR	339	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned by	Huhtamaki Finance	B.V.:					
Huhtamaki Istanbul Ambalaj Sanayi A.S.	6,599,984	100.0	TRY	6,600	EUR	25,404	100.0
Huhtamaki Holdings Pty Ltd	43,052,750	100.0	AUD	43,053	EUR	2	100.0
Huhtamaki (NZ) Holdings Ltd	13,920,000	100.0	NZD	12,250	EUR	2,637	100.0
Huhtamaki Anglo Holding	64,000,001	100.0	GBP	64,000	EUR	102,597	100.0
Huhtamaki Finance B.V.Y. Cia, Sociedada Collectiva—		100.0	EUR	24,604	EUR	24,601	100.0
Huhtamaki Finance Co I B.V.	200	100.0	EUR	20	EUR	241,623	100.0
Huhtamaki Holdings France SNC	519,203	100.0	EUR	7,918	EUR	8,176	100.0
Huhtamaki (Norway) Holdings A/S	28,459	100.0	NOK	28,459	EUR	3,470	100.0
Huhtamaki Sweden Holding AB	1,000	100.0	SEK	100	EUR	2,401	100.0
Huhtamaki Egypt Ltd	6,000	75.0	EGP	6,000	EUR	2,611	75.0
Huhtamaki South Africa (Pty) Ltd.	168,661	100.0	ZAR	335	EUR	10,862	100.0
Huhtamaki S.p.A	20,020,000	100.0	EUR	10,410	EUR	34,836	100.0
Huhtamaki Singapore Pte. Ltd	28,000,000	100.0	SGD	28,000	EUR	11,977	100.0
Huhtamaki (Vietnam) Ltd	_	100.0	USD	7,574	USD	6,370	100.0
Huhtamaki Hong Kong Limited	181,401	100.0	HKD	181	EUR	21,336	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned by	Huhtamaki Holding	s Pty. Ltd:					
Huhtamaki Australia Limited	9,241,702	100.0	AUD	9,242	AUD	9,242	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned by	Huhtamaki (NZ) Ho	ldings Ltd:					
Huhtamaki Henderson Ltd	195,700	99.8	NZD	391	NZD	28,493	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned by	Huhtamaki Holding	s France SNC:					
Huhtamaki Participations France SNC.	37,370,200	100.0	EUR	37,370	EUR	37,420	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned by	Huhtamaki Finance	B.V.Y. Cia, Socieda	da Colle	ectiva:			
Huhtamaki Spain S.L.	1,048,992	100.0	EUR	31,522	EUR	24,000	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned by	Huhtamaki Anglo H	lolding Unlimited:					
Huhtamaki Ltd.	51,928,202	100.0	GBP	51,928	GBP	87,000	100.0
Huhtamaki (UK) Holdings Ltd	69	100.0	GBP	-	GBP	22,000	100.0

Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Participations France SNC: Huhtenaki Fr	Name	Number of shares	Size of holding, %		Nominal value		Book value	Group holding, S
Proceedes Mondernes 1,004,674 99.1 EUR 15,070 EUR 10,461	Subsidiary shares owned by	y Huhtamaki Parti	cipations France S	SNC:				
Colon Colo	Huhtamaki France S.A.	71,994	100.0	EUR	1,097	EUR	42,908	100.
Huhtamaki (NK) Lid		1,004,674	99.1	EUR	15,070	EUR	10,461	100.
Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki (Norway) Holdings A/S:	Subsidiary shares owned by	y Huhtamaki Ltd:						
Huhtamaki Norway A/S	Huhtamaki (UK) Ltd	11,000,003	100.0	GBP	11,000	GBP	25,513	100.
Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Sweden Holding AB:	-				050	NOV	140,000	100
Subsidiary shares owned by Partner Polarcup Oy:	Huntamaki Norway A/S	950	100.0	NUK	950	NUK	148,000	100.
Subsidiary shares owned by Partner Polarcup Oy: 16,563 170,958,800 95.0 RUR 170,959 EUR 16,563	Subsidiary shares owned by	y Huhtamaki Swed	den Holding AB:					
Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Portugal SGPS, Lda:	Huhtamaki Sweden AB	1,500	100.0	SEK	150	SEK	17,936	100.
Subsidiary shares owned by Pacific World Packaging (International) Ltd: ###################################	Subsidiary shares owned by	y Partner Polarcup	0 Оу:					
Linhamaki Embalagens)00 Huhtamaki S.N.G.	170,958,800	95.0	RUR	170,959	EUR	16,563	100.
Subsidiary shares owned by Pacific World Packaging (International) Ltd:		y Huhtamaki Portu	ıgal SGPS, Lda:					
Huhtamaki Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 21,999,999 100.0 MYR 22,000 HKD 45,915 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Hong Kong Limited: Huhtamaki (Tianjin) Limited 1 100.0 CNY 128,124 HKD 127,952 Huhtamaki (Guangzhou) 1 100.0 USD 3,177 HKD 24,650 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Finance Co I B.V.: Huhtamaki Polska Sp. z o.0. 50,370 99.3 PLN 25,185 EUR 19,742 Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana SA. de C.V. 114,789,065 96.9 MXP 110,782 EUR 13,321 Huhtamaki Ceska republika,a.s. 1 100.0 CZK 111,215 EUR 5,389 Huhtamaki France Investments Holding BV. 191 100.0 EUR 19 EUR 13,385 Huhtawaki Beheer V BV. 180 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtamaki Beheer V BV. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtamaki Beheer V BV. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtamaki Beheer X BV. 170,000 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhtamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Paper Recycling 7,737,306 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Modded Filber 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki New Zealand 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtawaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Huhtamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V. 150,087,165 100.0 MXP 150,091 MXP 150,087		170,000	100.0	EUR	848	EUR	1,920	100.
Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Hong Kong Limited:			ckaging (Internati	onal) Ltd:				
Juhlamaki (Tianjin) Limited 1 100.0 CNY 128,124 HKD 127,952 Juhlamaki (Guangzhou) 1 100.0 USD 3,177 HKD 24,650 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Finance Co I B.V: Juhlamaki Polska Sp. z o.o. 50,370 99.3 PLN 25,185 EUR 19,742 Juhlamaki Consorcio Mexicana 114,789,065 96.9 MXP 110,782 EUR 13,321 Juhlamaki France Investments 100.0 CZK 111,215 EUR 5,389 Juhlamaki France Investments 100.0 EUR 19 EUR 13,385 Juhlamaki Beheer V B.V. 180 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 13,385 Juhlamaki Beheer V B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Juhlamaki Industries B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR - Juhlamaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Juhlam	luhtamaki Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.	21,999,999	100.0	MYR	22,000	HKD	45,915	100
Table Tabl		,	, ,					
Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Finance Co I B.V.:	, , ,	1	100.0	CNY	128,124	HKD	127,952	100
Huhlamaki Polska Sp. z o.o. 50,370 99.3 PLN 25,185 EUR 19,742 Huhlamaki Consorcio Mexicana 14,789,065 96.9 MXP 110,782 EUR 13,321 Huhlamaki Coska republika,a.s. 1 100.0 CZK 111,215 EUR 5,389 Huhlamaki France Investments Huhlamaki France Investments Huhlamaki Beheer V B.V. 180 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhlamaki Beheer V B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhlamaki Beheer XI B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhlamaki Huhlamaki Nederland B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR — Huhlamaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Polective 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhlamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhlamaki New Zealand 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.:		1	100.0	USD	3,177	HKD	24,650	100
Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana SA. de C.V. 114,789,065 96.9 MXP 110,782 EUR 13,321 Huhtamaki Ceska republika,a.s. 1 100.0 CZK 111,215 EUR 5,389 Huhtamaki France Investments Huhtawaki France Investments Huhtawaki France Investments Huhtawaki France Investments Huhtawaki Beheer V. B.V. 180 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtawaki Beheer V. B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtawaki Beheer XI B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhtawaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR -Huhtawaki Nolded Fiber Gechnology B.V. Huhtawaki Molded Fiber 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtawaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtawaki New Zealand Imited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhtawaki New Zealand Imited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhtawaki ASABA ndonesia 112,50 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 150,087,165 100.0 MXP 150,091 MXP 150,087	Subsidiary shares owned by	y Huhtamaki Finar	nce Co I B.V.:					
SA. de C.V. 114,789,065 96.9 MXP 110,782 EUR 13,321 Huhtamaki Ceská republika,a.s. 1 100.0 CZK 111,215 EUR 5,389 Huhtamaki France Investments Holding B.V. 191 100.0 EUR 19 EUR 13,385 Huhtamaki Beheer V.B.V. 180 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtamaki Beheer V.B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhtamaki Beheer XI.B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhtamaki Industries B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR — Huhtamaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Molded Fiber 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Molded Fiber 200 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtamaki New Zealand Imited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 27. Huhtamaki New Zealand Imited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 27. Huhtamaki New Zealand Imited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 27. Huhtamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.:	Huhtamaki Polska Sp. z o.o.	50,370	99.3	PLN	25,185	EUR	19,742	100
Huhtamaki Ceská republika,a.s. 1 100.0 CZK 111,215 EUR 5,389 Huhtamaki France Investments Holding B.V. 191 100.0 EUR 19 EUR 13,385 Huhtavefa B.V. 180 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 18 EUR 18 Huhtamaki Beheer V.B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtamaki Beheer X.B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhtamaki Industries B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR — Huhtamaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Molded Fiber Eechnology B.V. 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Protective Packaging B.V. 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Protective Packaging B.V. 250 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtamaki New Zealand Limited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhtamaki ASABA 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.:		114.789.065	96.9	MXP	110.782	EUR	13.321	100
Holding B.V. 191 100.0 EUR 19 EUR 13,385 Huhtavefa B.V. 180 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 18 Huhtavefa B.V. 180 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 18 Huhtawaki Beheer V B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtamaki Beheer XI B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhtamaki Industries B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR — Huhtamaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Molded Fiber echnology B.V. 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtamaki New Zealand Imited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhtamaki ASABA ndonesia 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtawaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.:								100
Huhtarvefa B.V. 180 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 18 Huhtarvefa B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtarvefa B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhtarvefa B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhtarvefa B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR — Huhtarvefa B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR — Huhtarvefa B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhtarvefa B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhtarvefa B.V. 10,000 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtarvefa B.V. 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtarvefa B.V. 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtarvefa B.V. 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 10,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtarvefa B.V. 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtavefa B.V.:		101	100.0	EUD	10	ELID	12.205	100
Huhlamaki Beheer V B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 241,667 Huhlamaki Beheer XI B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhlamaki Industries B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR — Huhlamaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Molded Fiber 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhlamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhlamaki New Zealand 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhlamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Subsidiary shares owned by Huhlawefa B.V.:	Ü							100 100
Huhtamaki Beheer XI B.V. 182 100.0 EUR 18 EUR 21,121 Huhtamaki Industries B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR — Huhtamaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Molded Fiber 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtamaki New Zealand 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhtamaki ASABA 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.:								100
Huhtamaki Industries B.V. 170,000 100.0 EUR 43,010 EUR — Huhtamaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Molded Fiber 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtamaki New Zealand 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.:								100
Huhtamaki Nederland B.V. 10,000 100.0 EUR 4,530 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Paper Recycling 1,350 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Molded Fiber 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtamaki New Zealand 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhtamaki ASABA 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Huhtamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.:							21,121	100
Huhlamaki Paper Recycling 3.V. 1,350 100.0 EUR 61 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Molded Fiber fechnology B.V. 200 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhlamaki Protective Packaging B.V. 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhlamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhlamaki New Zealand Limited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhlamaki ASABA Indonesia 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Huhlamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V. 150,087,165 100.0 MXP 150,091 MXP 150,087							0	100
Auhtamaki Molded Fiber echnology B.V. Huhtamaki Protective 250 100.0 EUR 91 EUR 0 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtamaki New Zealand imited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhtamaki ASABA ndonesia 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Huhtamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.:	Huhtamaki Paper Recycling							100
Huhtamaki Protective Packaging B.V. 250 100.0 EUR 113 EUR 0 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtamaki New Zealand Limited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 2.T. Huhtamaki ASABA Indonesia 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Huhtamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V. 150,087,165 100.0 MXP 150,091 MXP 150,087 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtavefa B.V.:	Huhtamaki Molded Fiber						0	100
Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd. 999,993 100.0 THB 100,000 EUR 7,885 Huhtamaki New Zealand 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhtamaki ASABA ndonesia 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Huhtamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtavefa B.V.:	Huhtamaki Protective	250	100.0	EUR	113	EUR	0	100
Huhtamaki New Zealand Limited 7,737,306 100.0 NZD 7,737 EUR 4,800 P.T. Huhtamaki ASABA Indonesia 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 P.T. Huhtamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Huhtamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtawefa B.V.:		999.993	100 0	THB	100.000	EUR	7.885	100
P.T. Huhlamaki ASABA ndonesia 11,250 50.0 IDR 2,678,625 EUR 1,094 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtamaki Consorcio Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.: Huhlamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V. Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtavefa B.V.:	Huhtamaki New Zealand							100
Huhtamaki Packaging 150,087,165 100.0 MXP 150,091 MXP 150,087 Mexicana, S.A. de C.V. 150,087,165 100.0 MXP 150,091 MXP 150,087 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtavefa B.V.:	P.T. Huhtamaki ASABA					EUR	1,094	50
Huhtamaki Packaging Mexicana, S.A. de C.V. 150,087,165 100.0 MXP 150,091 MXP 150,087 Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtavefa B.V.:	Subsidiary shares owned b	y Huhtamaki Cons	sorcio Mexicana S	5.A. de C.V	:			
Subsidiary shares owned by Huhtavefa B.V.:	Huhtamaki Packaging					MXP	150 087	100.0
• •	Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.	150,007,100	100.0	IVIAF	190,091	IVIAE	100,007	100.0
The Paper Products Limited 7,386,820 58.9 INR /3,868 EUR 25,718			50.0	INID	70.070	ELID	05.710	
	The Paper Products Limited	7,386,820	58.9	INK	73,868	EUK	25,/18	58.9

42

Name		e of holding, %		Nominal value		Book value	Group holding, %
Subsidiary shares owned		oldings Limited	l:				
Huhtamaki (Lurgan) Limited	3,104,000	100.0	GBP	1,583	GBP	4,937	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	d by Huhtamaki Beheer	V B.V.:					
Huhtamaki Americas, Inc.	100	100.0	USD	-	EUR	241,650	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	d by Huhtamaki Americ	as, Inc.:					
Huhtamaki North America	-	90.0	USD	1	USD	225,578	100.0
Huhtamaki Consumer Packaging, Inc.	1,000	100.0	USD	1	USD	123,548	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki Consun	mer Packaging	, Inc.:				
Huhtamaki Packaging, Inc.	1,000	100.0	USD	1	USD	23,164	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki Beheer	XI B.V.:					
Huhtamaki Brazil Investments B.V.	200	100.0	EUR	20	EUR	42,804	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	d by Huhtamaki North A	America:					
Huhtamaki Delaware, Inc.	100	100.0	USD	1	USD	462,480	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	d by Huhtamaki Delawa	are, Inc.:					
Huhtamaki Holding, Inc.	100	100.0	USD	1	USD	366,218	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki Holding	J Inc.:					
Huhtamaki Flexibles, Inc.	100	100.0	USD	1	USD	26,874	100.0
Huhtamaki Plastics, Inc.	1,000	100.0	USD	1	USD	110,173	100.0
Huhtamaki - East Providence., Inc.	6,445	100.0	USD	15	USD	33,148	100.0
Huhtamaki Group of Companies	100	100.0	USD	1	USD	118,685	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki Brazil I	nvestments B.	V.:				
Huhtamaki do Brasil Ltda	26,926,590	100.0	BRL	26,926	EUR	13,482	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki France	Investments F	loldina B.V				
Huhtamaki La Rochelle SNC	2,500,000	100.0	EUR	3,811	EUR	206	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki Supra S	S.A.R.L.:					
Huhtalux S.A.R.L.	125	100.0	EUR	13	EUR	233,493	100.0
Huhtamaki German Holdings Supra B.V.	180	100.0	EUR	18	EUR	86,000	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki Germar	n Holdings Sup	ra B.V.:				
Huhtamaki German Holdings B.V.	180	100.0	EUR	18	EUR	39,000	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki Germar	n Holdings B.V	:				
Huhtamaki Dritte Beteiligungs GmbH	1	100.0	EUR	30	EUR	385,005	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki Dritte E	Beteiligungs Gı	nbH:				
Huhtamaki Vierte Beteiligungs GmbH	1	100.0	EUR	30	EUR	384,980	100.0
Subsidiary shares owned	l by Huhtamaki Vierte E	Beteiligungs G	mbH:				
Huhtamaki Deutchland GmbH & Co. KG	19.391	75.1	EUR	1,939	EUR	384,955	100.0

Parent company annual accounts 2005

Parent company income statement (FAS)

EUR million	Note	2005	%	2004	%
Net sales	1	107.5	100.0	105.6	100.0
Cost of goods sold		-82.8		-77.3	
Gross profit		24.7	22.9	28.3	26.8
Sales and marketing		-7.4		-9.1	
Research and development		-2.2		-1.9	
Administration costs		-22.9		-22.2	
Other operating expenses		-5.2		-5.0	
Other operating income		51.4		57.7	
		13.7		19.5	
Earnings before interest and taxes	2,3	38.4	35.7	47.8	45.3
Net financial income/expense	4	-24.3		290.5	
Profit before exceptional items, appropriations and taxes		14.1	31.1	338.3	320.3
Depreciation difference,					
(-) increase, (+) decrease		0.0		-0.2	
Taxes	5	-3.0		-1.9	
Net income		11.1	10.3	336.2	318.3

Parent company balance sheet (FAS)

EUR million	Note	2005	%	2004	%
Fixed assets					
Intangible assets	6				
Intangible rights		0.5		0.4	
Other capitalized expenditure		4.9		8.0	
		5.4	0.2	8.4	0.3
Tangible assets	7				
Land		0.5		0.5	
Buildings and constructions		33.5		34.1	
Machinery and equipment		33.1		33.1	
Other tangible assets		4.7		4.9	
Construction in progress and advance payments		25.4		13.0	
		97.2	3.6	85.6	3.3
Other fixed assets					
Shares and holdings		2,408.9		2,408.9	
Loans receivable	8	3.4		3.3	
		2,412.3	90.0	2,412.2	92.5
Current assets					
Inventories					
Raw and packaging material		3.4		3.3	
Work-in-process		2.0		0.6	
Finished goods		7.1		8.2	
		12.5	0.5	12.1	0.5
Short-term					
Trade receivables	8	13.7		11.4	
Loans receivable	8	104.8		43.3	
Accrued income	9	26.2		22.5	
		144.7	5.4	77.2	2.9
Cash and bank		7.1	0.3	12.9	0.5
		2,679.2	100.0	2,608.5	100.0

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

EUR million	Note	2005	%	2004	%
Shareholders' equity	10,11				
Share capital		353.1		351.5	
Premium fund		96.8		95.4	
Retained earnings available for distribution		1.140.4		841.6	
Net income for the period		11.1		336.2	
·		1,601.4	59.8	1,624.8	62.3
Untaxed reserves		40.0	1.5	40.0	1.5
Liabilities					
Long-term					
Loans from financial institutions	13	320.1		282.4	
Pension loans	13	34.3		40.4	
Other long-term liabilities		_		0.0	
		354.4	13.2	322.8	12.4
Short-term					
Trade payables	12	12.6		12.0	
Accrued expenses	14	25.2		42.1	
Other short-term liabilities	12	645.6		566.8	
		683.4	25.5	620.9	23.8
		2,679.2	100.0	2,608.5	100.0
Total retained earnings available for distribution		1,151.5		1,177.8	

46

Parent company cash flow statement (FAS)

EUR million	2005	2004
EBIT	38.4	47.8
Depreciation	9.0	-2.6
Change in inventory	-0.4	-1.1
Change in non-interest bearing receivables	-7.0	4.7
Change in non-interest bearing payables	2.6	0.6
Net financial income/expense	-44.6	-21.5
Taxes	-0.8	-7.8
Cash flows from operating activities	-2.8	20.1
Capital expenditure	-17.6	-12.4
Proceeds from selling fixed assets	0.0	0.3
Acquired subsidiaries	_	-319.3
Change in long-term deposits	_	-0.3
Change in short-term deposits	-62.0	-3.7
Cash flows from investing activities	-79.6	-335.4
Change in long-term loans	31.7	40.8
Change in short-term loans	77.2	-36.8
Dividends	2.2	319.7
Dividends paid	-37.3	-36.5
Proceeds from stock option exercises	2.9	17.4
Cash flows from financing activities	76.7	304.5
Change in liquid assets	-5.7	-10.8
Liquid assets on January 1	12.8	4.6
Liquid assets from mergers	_	19.1
Liquid assets on December 31	7.1	12.8

Parent company accounting principles

The financial statements of Huhtamäki Oyj have been prepared according to Finnish Accounting Standards (FAS). In accordance with the new legislation the treasury shares can not be included in balance sheet assets. This change in accounting principles is also shown in the balance sheet of the previous year. The financial statements have been prepared in Euros on the basis of historical costs and do not take into account increases in the market value of assets, unless otherwise stated.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are recorded according to the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date. Trade receivables and payables are revalued at the rate of exchange on the balance sheet date. Exchange rate differences arising from translation of trade receivables are recorded under net

sales, and exchange rate differences on trade payables under costs and expenses. Exchange rate differences on translation of financial items, such as loans and deposits, are entered under financial income and expenses.

Derivative instruments

Foreign exchange forward contracts are used for hedging the company's currency position. Foreign exchange forwards are marked-to-market at the rate of exchange on the balance sheet date and recorded in the income statement as an adjustment of sales and purchases only to the extent they relate to balance sheet items being hedged. The revaluation differences of forwards used for hedging forecasted cash flows are booked to the income statement.

Foreign exchange forward contracts used for hedging financial items, such as loans and deposits, are marked-to-

market and booked to other financial income and expense. Foreign exchange forwards and foreign currency loans are used to hedge net investments in foreign entities. The foreign exchange gain or loss is booked in the income statement.

The company manages its interest rate risks using interest rate swaps. Interest income or expenses deriving from such instruments are accrued over the contract period.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized on a systematic basis over their estimated useful life. The period of amortization does not exceed 20 years.

Tangible assets

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost and are depreciated using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Periods of depreciation used:

Buildings and other structures 20–40 (years)
Machinery and equipment 5–15 (years)
Other tangible assets 3–12 (years)

Leases of equipment are classified as operating leases.

Investments

Investments classified as current assets are carried at market value. Any increases or decreases in carrying values are credited or charged to financial income.

Investments classified as long-term assets are carried at cost, less amounts written off to recognize permanent declines in the value of the investment. On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to income.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in the balance sheet of the company in accordance with the valuation policy applied to long-term investments.

Investments in associated companies are carried in the company's balance sheet in accordance with the valuation policy applied to long-term investments noted above. An associated company is one in which Huhtamaki holds, directly or indirectly, between 20% and 50% of the voting power of the company.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, replacement cost or net realizable value. Cost for purchased inventories represents historic purchase price determined on a first in first out (FIFO) basis.

Cost for produced finished goods and work in process represents the historic purchase price of materials, determined on a first in first out basis, plus direct labor, other direct costs and related production overheads excluding selling and financial costs.

Income taxes

The income statement includes income taxes of the company based on taxable profit for the financial period according to local tax regulations as well as adjustments to prior year taxes. The information related to deferred tax items is included in notes

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at the date of delivery. Net sales is calculated after deduction of sales discounts, indirect sales taxes and exchange differences on sales in foreign currencies.

Research and development

Research and development costs are charged as an expense in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred, without exception.

Other operating income and expenses

Other operating income includes gains from disposal of assets and regular income, such as royalty and rental income, which has not been derived from primary activities.

Other operating expenses include losses from disposal of assets and other costs not directly related to end products such as research and development.

Exceptional income and expenses

Exceptional income and expenses includes items which fall outside the ordinary activities of the company, such as group contributions or divestments.

Notes to the parent company financial statements

1. NET SALES

EUR million	2005	2004
Net sales by categories:		
Consumer Goods	42.9	40.3
Foodservice	64.6	65.3
Total	107.5	105.6

2. PERSONNEL COSTS

EUR million	2005	2004
Wages and salaries	27.9	27.6
Pension costs	4.4	4.3
Other personnel costs	2.3	2.6
Total	34.6	34.6

Theabove amounts are on an accrual basis. Remuneration paid by the parent company to the members of the Board of Directors as well as the CEO of Huhtamäki Oyj (10 people) amounted to EUR 0.9 million. The CEO of Huhtamäki Oyj is entitled to retirement at the age of 60.

Personnel (average)	2005	2004
	783	768

3.DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

EUR million	2005	2004
Depreciation by function:		
Production	4.7	4.5
Sales and marketing	0.8	0.8
Administration	0.6	0.7
Other	3.0	2.9
Total depreciation	9.1	8.9
Depreciation by asset type:		
Land, buildings	1.0	1.0
Machinery and equipment	5.0	4.8
Other intangible assets	3.1	3.1
Total depreciation	9.1	8.9

4. FINANCIAL INCOME/EXPENSE

EUR million	2005	2004
Interest income	0.4	1.0
Intercompany interest income	9.2	4.9
Dividend income	0.0	0.4
Dividend income from subsidiaries	2.1	319.3
Dividend income from associated companies	0.2	0.4
Other financial income	155.1	185.6
Interest expense	-28.9	-29.7
Intercompany interest expense	-6.3	-4.4
Other financial expense	-156.1	-187.0
Total	-24.3	290.5

5. TAXES

EUR million	2005	2004	
Ordinary taxes	-3.0	-1.9	
Total	-3.0	-1.9	

Deferred tax asset or liability is not included in the income statement or balance sheet. Deferred tax liability from timing differences is EUR 11.0 million (2004: EUR 11.0 million).

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible rights	Other capitalized Expenditure	2005 total	2004 total
0.6	31.5	32.1	31.6
0.0	0.0	0.0	0.4
0.6	31.5	32.1	32.1
0.1	23.5	23.6	20.3
0.0	3.1	3.1	3.3
0.1	26.6	26.7	23.6
0.5	4.9	5.4	_
0.5	8.0	_	8.5
	0.6 0.0 0.6 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.5	Intangible rights Expenditure 0.6 31.5 0.0 0.0 0.6 31.5 0.1 23.5 0.0 3.1 0.1 26.6 0.5 4.9	Intangible rights Expenditure 2005 total 0.6 31.5 32.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 31.5 32.1 0.1 23.5 23.6 0.0 3.1 3.1 0.1 26.6 26.7 0.5 4.9 5.4

7.TANGIBLE ASSETS

				Construction in	0.1		
EUR million	Land	Buildings and constructions	Machinery and equipment	progress and advance payments	Other tangible assets	2005 total	2004 total
Acquisition cost at January 1	0.5	60.9	82.9	13.0	12.1	169.4	146.2
Additions	-	_	-	17.3	0.2	17.5	23.1
Disposals	-	_	-	-	_	_	-0.6
Intra-balance sheet transfer	_	0.4	4.5	-4.9	0.0	_	0.7
Acquisition cost at December 31	0.5	61.3	87.4	25.4	12.3	186.9	169.4
Accumulated depreciation at January 1	_	26.8	50.1	-	6.9	83.8	78.0
Accum. depreciation on decreases and transfers	-	_	_	-	_	_	-0.4
Depreciation during the financial year	_	1.0	4.3	_	0.7	6.1	6.2
Accumulated depreciation at December 31	_	27.8	54.3	_	7.6	89.7	83.8
Book value at December 31, 2005	0.5	33.5	33.1	25.4	4.7	97.2	_
Book value at December 31, 2004	0.5	34.1	32.8	13.0	5.2	_	85.6

Revaluations of buildings and constructions in 2005 is EUR 2.4 million (2004: EUR 2.4 million).

8. RECEIVABLES

EUR million	2005	2004
Current		
Trade receivables	7.4	6.1
Intercompany trade receivables	6.3	5.3
Loan receivables from subsidiaries	104.8	43.3
Accrued income and other short-term receivables	11.7	15.5
Accrued corporate income and other intercompany receivables	14.5	7.0
Total	144.7	77.2
Long-term		
Intercompany loan receivables	3.3	3.3
Total receivables	148.0	80.6

9. ACCRUED INCOME

EUR million	2005	2004
Accrued interest and other financial items	0.4	6.0
Accruals for profit on exchange	1.5	_
Personnel, social security and pensions	0.2	0.3
Rebates	0.7	0.6
Accruals for income and other taxes	_	0.6
Miscellaneous accrued income	8.6	6.9
Accrued corporate income and prepaid expense	14.5	7.0
Other	0.3	1.2
Total accrued income and other short-term receivables	26.2	22.6

10. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE PARENT COMPANY

For details on share capital see note 21 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

11. CHANGES IN EQUITY

EUR million	2005	2004
Restricted equity:		
Share capital January 1	351.5	344.2
Subscription through option rights	1.6	7.3
Share capital December 31	353.1	351.5
Premium fund January 1	95.4	85.4
Subscription through option rights	1.4	10.0
Premium fund December 31	96.8	95.4
Non-restricted equity:		
Retained earnings January 1	1,177.8	878.1
Dividends	-37.4	-36.5
Net income for the period	11.1	336.2
Retained earnings December 31	1,151.5	1,177.8
Total equity	1,601.4	1,624.8

12. PAYABLES

EUR million	2005	2004
Trade payables	11.1	9.6
Intercompany trade payables	1.5	2.4
Total	12.6	12.0
Other short-term payables	46.4	2.3
Current loans	599.2	564.5
Total	645.6	566.8

13. LOANS

EUR million	2005	2004
Current		
Loans from financial institutions – current portion	5.7	5.7
Finance lease liabilities – current portion	0.1	-
Loans from subsidiaries		
- current portion	302.8	218.5
Short term loans	290.6	340.3
Total	599.2	564.5
Long-term		
Loans from financial institutions	354.5	322.8
Finance lease liabilities	0.5	_
Total	355.0	322.8
Changes in long-term loans and repayments	2005	2004
Loans from financial institutions	2003	2004
January 1	322.5	259.8
Additions	1,037.0	188.3
Decreases	-1.020.8	-112.8
Foreign exchange effect	15.8	-12.8
Total	354.5	322.5
Total	001.0	022.0
Repayments in 2006	5.7	5.7
14.7		
Pension loans		
January 1	0.3	0.2
Increases	0.3	4.6
Decreases	-0.6	-4.5
Total	0.0	0.3
Finance lease liabilities		
January 1	0.0	_
Increases	0.7	_
Decreases	-0.1	_
Total	0.6	0.0
Repayments in 2006	0.1	_
Pension loans December 31		
From pension foundation	0.0	0.3
Total	0.0	0.3

Repayments	Financial insti- tution loans	Finance lease liabilites
2006	5.7	0.1
2007	27.0	0.1
2008	29.7	0.2
2009	5.7	0.2
2010	210.5	0.0
2011-	81.5	-

14. ACCRUED EXPENSES

EUR million	2005	2004
Accrued interest expense	6.5	7.2
Accrued interest expense to subsidiaries	4.5	22.7
Personnel, social security and pensions	10.5	9.8
Purchases of material	0.1	0.4
Miscellaneous accrued expense	2.3	1.7
Other accrued corporate expense	1.2	0.4
Other	0.1	-
Total	25.2	42.1

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

EUR million	2005	2004
Operating lease payments:		
Under one year	0.1	0.2
Later than one year	0.3	0.1
Total	0.4	0.4
Capital expenditure commitments:		
Under one year	0.8	0.2
Later than one year	_	
Total	0.8	0.2
Mortgages:		
For own debt	14.5	14.9
Guarantee obligations:		
For subsidiaries	111.2	111.3
For joint ventures	5.2	3.1
For external parties	0.3	4.6

Proposal of the Board of Directors

On December 31, 2005, consolidated non-restricted equity amounted to On December 31, 2005, Huhtamäki Oyj's non-restricted equity was of which the net income for the financial period was

EUR 399,647,430.26 EUR 1,151,541,944.49 EUR 11,107,097.85

The Board of Directors proposes distribution of the retained earnings as follows:

- to the shareholders at EUR 0.38 a share
- to be left in non-restricted equity

37,535,747.54 1,114,006,196.95

1,151,541,944.49

The Board of Directors proposes that the payment of dividends will be made on April 6, 2006. The dividends will be paid to shareholders who on the record date March 30, 2006 are registered as shareholders in the register of shareholders.

Espoo, February 7, 2006

Mikael Lilius Eija Ailasmaa Paavo Hohti

George V. Bayly Robertus van Gestel

Anthony J.B. Simon Jukka Suominen Heikki Takanen

CEO

Auditors' report

To the shareholders of Huhtamäki Oyj

We have audited the accounting records, the financial statements and the administration of Huhtamäki Oyj for the period 1.1. – 31.12.2005. The Board of Directors and the Managing Director have prepared the Report of the Board of Directors and the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and the parent company's financial statements prepared in accordance with prevailing regulations in Finland, that include parent company's balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements. Based on our audit, we express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, the parent company's financial statements and on the administration of the parent company.

We have conducted the audit in accordance with Finnish Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The purpose of our audit of administration is to examine that the members of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director of the parent

company have complied with the rules of the Finnish Companies Act.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU give a true and fair view, as referred to in the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and defined in the Finnish Accounting Act, of the consolidated results of operations as well as of the financial position. The consolidated financial statements can be adopted.

Parent company's financial statements and administration

In our opinion the parent company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Finnish Accounting Act and other rules and regulations governing the preparation of financial statements in Finland. The financial statements give a true and fair view, as defined in the Finnish Accounting Act, of the parent company's result of operations as well as of the financial position. The financial statements can be adopted and the members of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director of the parent company can be discharged from liability for the period audited by us. The proposal by the Board of Directors regarding the distribution of retained earnings is in compliance with the Finnish Companies Act.

Espoo, February 7, 2006

Solveig Törnroos-Huhtamäki Authorized Public Accountant KPMG Pekka Pajamo Authorized Public Accountant KPMG





Huhtamäki Oyj | Länsituulentie 7 | 02100 ESPOO, Finland tel +358 9 6868 81 | fax +358 9 660 622 www.huhtamaki.com | www.huhtamaki.fi | info.hq@huhtamaki.com Business Identity Code: 0410879-6